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11TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

11th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company is scheduled to be held on 

Tuesday, 9th September, 2025 at 4.30 p.m. through video conferencing / Other Audio-Visual 

Means (OAVM). 
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HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY OVERVIEW  
 
The healthcare industry in India is a large and rapidly growing sector, encompassing hospitals, medical 
devices, clinical trials, telemedicine, and more. It's a significant employer and a major contributor to the 
country's economy. The Indian healthcare sector is characterized by both public and private players, with 
the private sector primarily responsible for secondary, tertiary, and quaternary care. Key trends include a 
growing focus on medical tourism, increasing investment in health tech, and a rise in personalized 
healthcare approaches.  
 
Key Aspects of the Indian Healthcare Industry: 
 
 Scale and Growth: The healthcare sector in India is one of the largest in terms of both revenue and 

employment. It is experiencing rapid growth due to increasing coverage, services, and expenditure 
by both public and private entities.  
 

 Public vs. Private: The public healthcare system, primarily focused on basic healthcare through 
Primary Healthcare Centres (PHCs), is complemented by a robust private sector offering specialized 
care in urban areas.  
 

 Key Components: The industry includes hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, telemedicine, 
medical tourism, health insurance, and medical equipment.  
 

 Cost-Effectiveness: India is known for its cost-competitive healthcare services, particularly in 
surgical procedures, compared to Western countries.  
 

 Medical Tourism: The country is emerging as a popular destination for medical tourism due to its 
skilled workforce, advanced infrastructure, and cost-effectiveness.  
 

 Government Initiatives: The Indian government is actively investing in the sector, with increased 
healthcare budgets and initiatives like the Ayushman Bharat scheme, which aims to provide 
affordable healthcare to a large segment of the population. 
 

 Technological Advancements: Health tech and digital health solutions are playing an increasingly 
important role in healthcare delivery and access. 
 

 Skilled Workforce: India boasts a large pool of well-trained medical professionals, which is a key 
competitive advantage.  
 

 Future Outlook: The industry is projected to grow significantly, with estimates reaching $774 billion 
in revenue by 2030.  

 
Opportunities and Trends: 
 
 Medical Devices: The government's policy of allowing 100% FDI in the medical device sector is 

attracting foreign investment.  
 

 Digital Health: The National Digital Health Mission (NDHM) is creating a digital health ecosystem, 
enhancing service delivery and connectivity among stakeholders.  
 

 Personalized Healthcare: A growing trend towards personalized healthcare, leveraging technology 
to tailor treatments and prevention strategies to individual needs.  
 

 Private Equity and Venture Capital: The healthcare sector is attracting significant private equity 
and venture capital investments, indicating strong growth potential.  
 

 Single-Specialty Hospitals: Corporate hospitals and multinationals are focusing on single-specialty 
hospitals, driven by technology and specialized care.  
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From the Desk of - 
Managing Director 
Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya 
 

 
 
Jupiter Hospital and group of JTP Hospitals - units of Aatmaj Healthcare Limited is a second home for 
us, here we care for our patients, teammates and vendors equally. We take care of everyone 
with warmth, sympathy, and understanding.  
 
We are united as JTP group of hospitals to take care of every patient with love, care and 
proper attention. We believe in the Uplifting lifestyle of human beings for their healthy life. It's our 
ultimate Responsibility.  
 
We are on a mission to spread awareness through the Well-being forum - for the physical, mental 
and spiritual well-being of all our associates with their sustained economic growth.  
 
We pray with all our power, understanding and true love that we will serve everyone with wisdom, 
Respect and Happiness for the growth of our life & Jupiter Hospital both. We will always have a 
sense of service and love in our work. Patients' happiness and satisfaction will be our ultimate duty.  
 
As an individual, I will be careful with incentives and awards, ensuring that the result 
is safe and beneficial to the people who entrust me with their health and welfare. We 
are supporting each other and value the work excellence of our colleagues and their human 
graces.  
 
We practice medicine with integrity, humility, honesty, and compassion—working with our fellow 
doctors and other colleagues to meet the needs of our patients.  
 
We will remember that everyone’s family and economic stability is important so we will focus 
on prevention than cure as a member of society. 
 
Available Facilities at JTP Group of Hospitals 

We make sure that nobody is denied access to the required medical services with the help of our 
expert doctors and medical specialists. We are with you always to offer world-class healthcare 
solutions. 
 

Ultrasound, 3D-4D Sonography: Experience detailed imaging and diagnostic accuracy with our 
Ultrasound and 3D-4D Sonography services, offering comprehensive evaluations for various medical 
conditions with advanced imaging technology. 
 

Leaders in Urology Care: At JTP Hospitals, we specialize in providing top-notch urology services, 
setting the standard for excellence in urological care. Our experienced team of urologists is dedicated 
to offering comprehensive diagnostic, treatment, and surgical solutions for a wide range of urological 
conditions. From minimally invasive procedures to advanced surgical interventions, we prioritize 
patient well-being and ensure personalized care for each individual. Trust JTP Hospitals for exceptional 
urology services that prioritize your health and quality of life. 
 

Joint Replacement Unit: Restore mobility and reclaim your life with our Joint Replacement Unit, 
where skilled orthopedic surgeons perform state-of-the-art joint replacement surgeries to relieve pain 
and improve function. 
 
High-End State of art ICU: Our high-end, state-of-the-art Intensive Care Unit ensures round-the-
clock monitoring and specialized care for critically ill patients, equipped with advanced medical 
equipment and staffed by experienced healthcare professionals. 
 

Echo Cardiography & TMT: Our Echo Cardiography and TMT services offer advanced diagnostic 
testing for heart conditions, providing accurate assessments of cardiac function and exercise tolerance 
to guide treatment decisions. 
 

Advanced Trauma Care Unit: Receive immediate and comprehensive care for traumatic injuries in 
our Advanced Trauma Care Unit, staffed by a multidisciplinary team of trauma specialists and 
equipped with cutting-edge technology. 
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Pathology Laboratory: Trust in accurate and reliable diagnostic testing with our Pathology 
Laboratory, equipped with modern equipment and staffed by experienced pathologists to ensure 
timely and precise results. 
 

24hrs Ambulance Service: Our round-the-clock Ambulance Service ensures swift and efficient 
transportation of patients in medical emergencies, staffed by trained paramedics equipped with life-
saving equipment to provide immediate care enroute to the hospital. 
 

Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU): Our NICU provides specialized care for newborns with 
complex medical needs, equipped with advanced monitoring and life-support equipment to ensure 
the best possible outcomes for fragile infants. 
 

Pharmacy: Conveniently access a wide range of medications and pharmaceutical products at our 
Pharmacy, staffed by knowledgeable pharmacists committed to providing personalized care and 
medication management services. 
 
Digital X-ray: Benefit from quick and accurate diagnostic imaging with our Digital X-ray services, 
providing high-quality radiographic images for the detection and evaluation of a wide range of medical 
conditions. 
 

Advanced Cathlab: Experience cutting-edge cardiac care with our Advanced Cathlab, equipped with 
state-of-the-art technology for precise diagnosis and intervention in heart conditions. 
 

Modular Operation Theatres: Experience surgical precision and safety in our modular operation 
theatres, designed with advanced infrastructure to facilitate efficient surgical procedures and ensure 
patient safety. 
 
WHY TO CHOOSE JTP GROUP OF HOSPITALS 
 

 
Jupiter Hospital ( JTP Group of Hospitals) offers an entirely personalized & Standard healthcare 
experience with professional medical care and efficient services. With private healthcare, we wish to 
offer our patients discretion and comfort. every patient will be treated with compassion and respect 
at our hospital. We care our patients with Human centric approach, Happiness & Hospitality.  
 
21+ Year of Experience  35+ Specialty   25+Facility 
 
35+ Doctors    18500+ Surgeries  210000+ Happy Patients 
 
Thank you for entrusting us with your health and well-being.  
As we move forward together, With profound gratitude and warm wishes. 

Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya 
Chairman & Managing Director  
DIN: 06802410 
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COMPANY OVERVIEW  

 
We believe in Standard health care at an affordable cost  

Jupiter Hospital (A JTP Group of Hospitals) offers an entirely personalized & Standard healthcare 
experience with professional medical care and efficient services. With private healthcare, we wish to 
offer our patients discretion and comfort. every patient will be treated with compassion and respect 
at our hospital.  

Milestones & achievements 

Established as a private limited company in 2014, Aatmaj Healthcare Private Limited, witnessed rapid 
success with the inauguration of Jupiter Hospital in Vadodara in 2017. The subsequent expansion to 
Padra, Muval, Badnawar and Indore (MP), showcased our commitment to meeting the healthcare 
needs of diverse communities. Amid the challenges of the COVID-19 era, we have emerged among 
Vadodara's top 5 hospitals, treating numerous patients. 

In 2022, sensing a vision for further growth, Aatmaj Healthcare Limited transitioned to a public limited 
company. The listing on NSE Emerge in July 2023 marked a pivotal moment, propelling us to expand 
two hospitals, now boasting 200+ beds each, totalling approximately 350-400 beds. 

Fuelled by fine-edge technology, their facilities feature advanced elements such as an advanced 
cardiology Cathlab, tertiary care ICU, NICU, and advanced laminar flow Modular Operation Theatres.  

This blend of compassionate care and state-of-the-art infrastructure defines their force, propelling 
them forward in the pursuit of excellence. 

Within these organizations, the driving force is a profound commitment to caring for staff, esteemed 
vendors, and the individuals we serve. Our hallmark is the synergy of teamwork, recognized for our 
transformative impact. Fuelled by fine-edge technology, our facilities feature cutting-edge elements, 
defining the force within them, and propelling them forward in pursuing excellence. 

In the dynamic landscape of Gujarat's healthcare, group of JTP Hospitals and Aatmaj Healthcare 
Limited stand as shining examples of what can be achieved when vision, dedication, and compassion 
converge on the path to better health for all. 

As we chart a course towards a healthier future, group of JTP Hospitals and Aatmaj Healthcare Limited 
call upon a collaborative approach with local communities, government bodies, and healthcare 
professionals. Our plea is for a collective journey toward a healthier Gujarat, where every citizen 
thrives in well-being, and health becomes a shared priority for generations to come. 

The Management  

As a group of JTP Hospital, at Aatmaj Healthcare Limited *Jupiter Hospital’), we firmly believe that 
healthcare is not just a service; it's an expression of empathy and commitment to uplift lives. Our 
mission revolves around the core values of Standard Care at Affordable Rates, ensuring that 
exceptional medical assistance is accessible to every individual. 

We stand shoulder-to-shoulder with the PMJAY scheme, a visionary initiative by the Honourable Prime 
Minister, Shri Narendra Modi. Supporting this noble cause, we strive to provide world-class treatment 
to the underprivileged, promising them a healthier and brighter future. 

We as a Jupiter Hospital team is ready to serve with a super multi-speciality facility, equipped with 
state-of-the-art technology. We are proud to declare that our specialised services span a wide 
spectrum, ranging from top-notch diagnostics to advanced surgical interventions, encompassing 
holistic care at every step of your medical journey. 

Our success is not measured merely by medical advancements; it's the trust we earn from our patients 
that fuels our passion to excel. We treasure each life we touch, making every effort to create an 
environment of healing, hope, and reassurance. 
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 11th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of AATMAJ 
HEALTHCARE LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, 9th September, 2025 at 4.30 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means (VC/OAVM), to transact the following businesses: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1.   To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2025 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 
2.  To appoint a director in place of Dr. Ravi Arvind Apte (DIN: 07171123), who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
 
 
By Order of the Board, 
For Aatmaj Healthcare Limited 
 
 
 
Tushar K Suvagiya 
Managing Director (DIN: 06802410) 
 
 
Date: 28th June, 2025 
Place: Vadodara 

 
Registered Office:  
“Jupiter Hospital”, Opp. ICAI Bhawan,  
Sun Pharma Ataladra Road,  
Vadodara – 390012, Gujarat, India 
 
 
CIN: L85100GJ2014PLC079062 
Email: info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com  
Website: https://jtphospitals.com/ 
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THE STATEMENT CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED IN SCHEDULE V 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 
 
I. General Information 

1] Nature of Industry Healthcare   

2] Date or Excepted date of Commencement of Business March 10, 2014 

3] In case of new companies, expected date of 
commencement of activities as per project approved by 
financial Institution appearing in the prospectus. 
 

Not Applicable 

4] Financial Performance based on given indicators Forming part of this Annual Report 

5] Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any Nil 

 
II.  Director seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting  

 
Details Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015: 
 
Name of Director  Dr. Ravi Arvind Apte 

DIN  07171123 

Date of Birth  June 03, 1974 

Date Of Appointment   April 30, 2015 

Shareholding In Company   3,60,000 

Qualification   M.B.B.S, D.A. 

Expertise In Specific Functional Area   Anaesthesiologist  

Experience 

 

 

He has overall experience of over 20 
years in the field of healthcare 
sector. Under his guidance the 
Company has witnessed continuous 
growth. 

Relationship with others directors and KMP Nil 

Directors In Other Public Limited Companies   Nil 

Chairperson Of Board Committees in Other Public Limited 
Companies Nil 

Membership Of Committees in Other Public Limited 
Companies Nil 

No. of meetings attended during the financial year 2024-25 Attendance of Board Meeting during 
FY 2024-25: 6 out of total 6 

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the 
Company, or relationship with the managerial personnel, if 
any. 
 

Nil 
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IMPORTANT NOTES 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 
issued by SEBI (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”), as amended from time to time, 
the companies are allowed to hold AGM through VC, without the physical presence of members at a 
common venue.  In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the members 
of the Company is being conducted through VC / OAVM. 
 

2. Information regarding appointment/reappointment of Director(s) and Explanatory Statement in 
respect of the businesses to be transacted pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and/or Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Secretarial Standard II is annexed hereto. 

 
3. The facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. 

However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-Voting. The facility to 
appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM and hence 
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
 
Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send 
a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board Resolution or governing body 
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the Annual General Meeting 
through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said 
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company at info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com and to 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Members can join the 
AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement 
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. 
This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first 
served basis. 
 

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

6. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not 
annexed hereto.  
 

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), the MCA Circulars 
& SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of 
the businesses to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote 
e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 

8. Notice calling the AGM has been sent by electronic means to those members who had registered 
their email addresses with the Company/Depositories. The Notice has also been uploaded on the 
website of the Company at https://jtphospitals.com/ & the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. NSE 
Limited at www.nseindia.com and is also made available on the website of NSDL (agency for 
providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

 
9. Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to register/update their email 

addresses with the relevant Depository Participants. 
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10. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 
address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, 
power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, 
MICR code, IFSC code, etc. 

 

11. The members who have not claimed dividend or whose Demand drafts have remained un-encashed, 
are requested to claim dividend or request for issue of fresh demand drafts for unclaimed dividends. 
The dividend remaining unclaimed will be transferred to the IEPF upon completion of 7 years after 
declaration by the Company. 

 
12. Members seeking clarifications on the information provided in the Annual Report are requested to 

send in written queries to the Company atleast seven working days before the date of the meeting. 
This would enable the Company to compile the information and provide the replies at the Meeting. 
Prior registration of queries with the Company is requested, in order to give satisfactory replies.  

 
13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) KYC details and nomination by holders of physical securities by October 1, 
2023, and linking PAN with Aadhaar by June 30, 2023 vide its circular dated March 16, 2023. 
Shareholders are requested to submit their PAN, KYC and nomination details to the Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, 
Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400083, Tel: +91 8108116767, Email: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com, 
Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com, by following the due procedure. 

  
Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their DP. 
In case a holder of physical securities fails to furnish PAN and KYC details before October 1, 2023 or 
link their PAN with Aadhaar before June 30, 2023, in accordance with the SEBI circular dated March 
16, 2023, RTA is obligated to freeze such folios. The securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible to 
receive payments (including dividend) and lodge grievances only after furnishing the complete 
documents. If the securities continue to remain frozen as on December 31, 2025, the RTA/the 
Company shall refer such securities to the administering authority under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibitions) Act, 1988, and/or the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. 

 
As per Section 72 of the Act, the facility for submitting nomination is available for members in respect 
of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to 
register the same by submitting Form SH-13. Members are requested to submit these details to their 
DP in case the shares are held by them in electronic form, and to the RTA, in case the shares are 
held in physical form. 

 

14. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 
Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also 
advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should 
be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 
 

15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are 
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by 
the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for 
electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up 
to the date of AGM, i.e. 9th September, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send 
an email to info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com  
 

16.  In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, and Regulation 44 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing 
Regulations”), the Company has provided a facility to its members to exercise their votes 
electronically through the electronic voting (“e-Voting”) facility provided by the NSDL. Members who 
have cast their votes by remote e-Voting prior to the AGM may participate in the AGM but shall not 
be entitled to cast their votes again. The manner of voting remotely by members holding shares in 
dematerialized mode is provided in the instructions for e-Voting section which forms part of this 
Notice. The Board has appointed M/s. K Parikh and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (M. 
No. F12786 and COP No. 26487), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-Voting and to give report 
thereon. 

 
17.  The e-Voting period commences on Saturday, 6th September, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on 

Monday, 8th September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period, members holding shares in 
dematerialized form, as on cut-off date, i.e. as on Tuesday, 2nd September, 2025 may cast their 
votes electronically. The e-Voting module will be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. A member 
will not be allowed to vote again on any resolutions on which vote have already been cast.  
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18.  The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made available. Members present in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM and who have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-Voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-Voting system during 
the AGM. 

 
19.  The Scrutinizer will submit their report to the Chairman of the Company (‘the Chairman’) or to any 

other person authorized by the Chairman after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-Voting (votes 
casted during the AGM and votes casted through remote e-Voting). The result declared along with 
the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communicated to the stock exchanges, NSDL and will also be 
displayed on the Company’s website, https://jtphospitals.com/. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING 
ARE AS UNDER: 
 
The remote e-Voting period begins on Saturday, 6th September, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on 
Monday, 8th September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST) The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners 
as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. on Tuesday, 2nd September, 2025 may cast their vote 
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date.  
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting 
system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:              
 
Instructions for e-voting  

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system  
 
Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode:- 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode bare allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.           
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:        
 
Type of shareholders Login 
Method 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer 
or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing 
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will 
be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. 
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting.  
 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  
 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
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screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 
sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.  
 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 
 
 
   
 
   
 
 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

1.  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to 
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password.  

 
2.  After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 

the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is 
in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, 
so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 
directly.  

 

3.  If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
& New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.  

 

4.  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a eVoting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the eVoting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 
Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

 
1.  You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting and voting during the meeting. 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.       
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.  
 
Login type                                        Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 
022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
1800-21-09911 

 
B)  Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1.    Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

 
2.     Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
 
3.     A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code 

as shown on the screen.  
 
 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eser 

vices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your 
log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 
4.     Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner   of   holding   shares   
i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical 

Your User ID is: 
 

a) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID. 
For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.  

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company. 
For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a)   If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

 
b)   If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need 
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

 
c)    How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 
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(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 
 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account 
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www. evoting.nsdl.com. 
 
c)   If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

 
d)   Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 

e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7.     After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8.     Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9.     After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to 
click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

 

3.     Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4.  Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

 

5.     Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
 

6.     You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

 

7.  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 
GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / 
Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

 
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 

e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of  www.evoting.nsdl.com 
or call on toll free no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre 
at evoting@nsdl.com 
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL IDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
DEPOSITORIES FOR PROCURING USER ID AND PASSWORD AND REGISTRATION OF E MAIL 
IDS FOR E- VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS SET OUT IN THIS NOTICE 
 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com 

 
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-d i g i t  DPID + CLID or 

16-d i g i t  beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 
(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com . 

 
3. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to 

the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting 
for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 
4. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id 

and password for e- voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 
5. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 
update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting 
facility. 

 
 CONTACT DETAILS: 

 
Company Aatmaj Healthcare Limited  

"Jupiter Hospital", Opp. ICAI Bhavan, Sunpharma Ataladra Road, 
Vadodara - 390012, Gujarat, IN Tel No. + 0265 2681568; Fax No. - 
E-Mail ID: info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com 
Website: https://jtphospitals.com/ 

Registrar and Transfer 
Agent 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400083,  
Tel: +91 81081 16767, Email: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com,  
Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com 

e-Voting Agency & VC / 
OAVM 

Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in 
 NSDL help desk 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 
Scrutinizer K Parikh and Associates  

  Ms. Ketki S Parikh (Membership No. FCS 12786, CP NO. 26487) Proprietor  
Email: pcskparikh@gmail.com; Tel No.: +91 9825893020 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 11th AGM:- 

1.     The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the 11th AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e- voting. 

 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the 11th AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 
 

3.  Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 11th AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 
4.  The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 

e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH 
VC/OAVM: 
 
1.     Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-

Voting system. Members may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under 
shareholders/members login by using the remote e- voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be 
available in shareholder/members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note 
that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP based 
login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
2. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at  
info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 
3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on 
first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
5. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 
6. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting. 
 
7. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. 
It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches. 
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Dear Shareholders, 
 
The Board of Directors hereby present 11th Annual Report on the business and operations of your 
Company along with the Audited Financial Statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 

Incorporated in 2014 Aatmaj Healthcare Limited (The Company) is a rapidly growing organization 
aiming to establish itself as a leading healthcare provider, utilizing modern medicinal practices and 
advanced infrastructure for medical and surgical care solutions. 
 
The Company is committed to elevating healthcare quality. They have established committees, 
employed extensively trained medical practitioners, and excelled in delivering top-tier healthcare 
services while effectively managing health emergencies. Additionally, they collaborate with partner 
organizations to offer affordable healthcare check-up options for employees, ensuring access to 
quality care for all. 
 
This organization is integral to India’s Ayushman Bharat-Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana, striving 
for universal health coverage.  
 
Furthermore, the hospital's dedication to public health was evident as it treated over 1,000 IPD and 
3,000 OPD COVID-19 patients. 
 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

The financial performance of the Company is summarized as below:  
           (₹ in Lacs) 

Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

Revenue From Operations 1953.34 1573.81 
Other Income 131.67 84.68 
Total Income 2085.01 1658.48 

Operating expenditure before Finance cost, depreciation and 
amortization 

1797.49 1318.47 

Less: Depreciation 92.09 80.84 
Less: Finance Cost 88.35 124.91 
Profit Before Tax 107.08 134.27 
Less: Current Tax 36.00 32.00 
Less: Deferred tax Liability (Asset) 7.15 14.19 
Profit after Tax 63.93 88.08 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 0.28 0.39 
 

During the financial year 2024-25 the revenue from operation stood at ₹ 1953.34 Lacs as compared 
to ₹ 1573.81 Lacs during the previous financial year 2023-24. The other income of the Company 
stood at ₹ 131.67 Lacs in the financial year 2024-25 as compared to ₹ 84.68 Lacs in previous financial 
year 2023-24. 
 
Further, during the financial year 2024-25 the total expenses have increased to ₹ 1977.93 lacs from 
₹ 1524.22 lacs in the previous financial year 2023-24. The Net Profit for the financial year 2024-25  
stood at ₹ 63.93 Lacs in comparison to profit of ₹ 88.08 Lacs in previous year 2023-24. 
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DIVIDEND 

In order to conserve the resources, the Board of Directors of the Company, do not recommend the 
payment of dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for the year under review.  
 
TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE 

The Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the Reserves. Total amount of net profit is 
carried to the Reserves & Surplus as shown in the Balance Sheet of the Company.    
 

TRANSFER OF UNPAID / UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND 
 
The dividend paid in the F.y 23-24 was the first dividend of the Company and the seven years has 
not completed since the declaration of dividend, there remains no amount to be transferred to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).  
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

During the year, the Company has not changed its business or object and continues to be in the 
same line of business as per the main object of the Company. 
 
LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES 

The trading of equity shares of the Company commenced on June 30, 2023 at Emerge Platform of NSE 
and continue to be listed as on date of this report to NSE emerge platform. 
 
The Company confirms that the annual listing fees to the stock exchange for the Financial Year 24-25 
and 25-26 have been paid, respectively.  
 
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL   

During the year under consideration, the Company has not changed its capital structure and the 
authorized and paid-up share capital as on 31st March 2025 stands as follow: 
 
The Company’s has issued, subscribed and paid-up capital at ₹ 11,30,00,000 (Rupees Eleven Crores 
Thirty Lacs) divided into 2,26,00,000 (Two Crores Twenty-Six Lacs) Equity Shares of ₹ 5/- (Rupees 
Five) each fully paid-up.   
 
SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE OF THE COMPANY 

During the financial year under review, the Company had no joint venture / associate / subsidiary 
Company. The Company is a standalone company. 
 
LISTING INFORMATION 

The equity shares of your Company are listed on the following stock exchange(s): 
 
Name of Stock Exchange : The National Stock Exchange of India 
Date of Listing : June 30, 2023 
Platform : SME Platform 
Symbol : AATMAJ 
ISIN : INE0OB201016 

 
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS / AMALGAMATIONS / MERGERS/ REVALUATION OF ASSET / 
DISINVESTMENT OF BUSINESS / SET-UP OF NEW UNDERTAKINGS, ETC 
 
During the year under review, the Board has neither made any acquisitions nor did any 
amalgamations or made any disinvestment of business or undertaking. However, the Company has 
set-up a new Unit of 150 beds Multi Speciality Hospital unit at Indore under the name of JTP Hospitals 
- Indore. A separate announcement has been made by the Company at NSE vide its letter dtd May 
27, 2025. The text of the announcement is  available at the website of NSE. 
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DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

The Company has entered into Tripartite Agreement with the depositories, National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository Service (India) Limited for providing Demat facility to its 
Shareholders. For the purpose the Company has appointed M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited 
as its registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Further, all the outstanding shares of the Company as on 
March 31, 2025 are in dematerialized form. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS & SECURITY: 

Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statement.  
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There is no change in the composition of the 
Board of Directors during the financial year 2024-25.  
 
None of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a Director under 
Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
(I) Constitutions of Board 

As on the date of this report, the Board comprises of the following Directors: 

Name of 
Director 

Category 
Cum 

Designation 

Date of 
Original 

Appointment 

Date of 
Appointment at 
current Term & 

designation 

Total 
Director 
ships2 

No. of Committee1 No. of 
Shares 

held as on 
March 31, 

2025 

in which 
Member 

in which 
Chairman 

Dr. Tushar K 
Suvagiya 

Managing 
Director 

March 10,  
2014 

December 16, 2022  
5 1 - 

1,04,46,000 
Equity 
Shares Managing Director 

Mrs. Jignasa 
Suvagiya 

Whole-time 
Director 

August 20, 
2022 

December 16, 2022  
1 - - 

9,00,000 
Equity 
Shares Whole-time Director 

Dr. Ravi A Apte Non-Executive 
Director April 30, 2015 

April 30, 2015   
1 

  
- 

  
- 

3,60,000 
Equity 
Shares 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Mr. 
Jigneshkumar 
H Gandhi 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 

August 20, 
2022 

August 20, 2022   
1 

  
1 

  
2 

  
Nil Non-Executive 

Director 
Mr. Nirajkumar 
B Lila 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 

August 20, 
2022 

August 20, 2022   
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
Nil Non-Executive 

Director 
Dr. Mansukh J 
Patel 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 

August 20, 
2022 

August 20, 2022 
 1  1  -   

Nil Non-Executive 
Director 

1 Committee includes Audit Committee, and Shakeholders’ Relationship Committee across all Public 
Companies including our Company. 
2 excluding Section 8 Company, Struck off Company, Amalgamated Company and LLPs. 
 
The composition of Board complies with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Further, 
in pursuance of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the Company is exempted from the requirement of having 
composition of Board as per Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations. 
 
(II) Composition of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

During financial year 2024-25, in accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya who is acting as Managing Director, Mrs. Jignasa K Suvagiya as 
Whole-Time Director and Mr. Pratik Gandhi as Chief Financial Officer of the Company.  
 
The Company has appointed Ms. Poorvi Gattani as a Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of 
the Company w.e.f. April 01, 2024.   
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(III) Appointment/Cessation of Directors/ KMP during the Year 
 
None of the Directors’ / KMPs’ have resigned from the Office during the year under review. 
 
(IV) Retirement by rotation 
 
Mr. Ravi A Apte (DIN: 07171123), director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting, pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and being eligible 
have offered himself for re-appointment. 
 
Appropriate business for his re-appointment is being placed for the approval of the shareholders of 
the Company at the ensuing AGM. The brief resume of the Director and other related information has 
been detailed in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM of the Company. 
 
The relevant details, as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard, of the person 
seeking re-appointment/appointment as Director are also provided in Notes to the Notice convening 
the 11th Annual General meeting. 
 
(V) Disclosure by Directors 
 
The Directors on the Board have submitted notice of interest under Section 184(1) i.e. in Form MBP-
1, intimation under Section 164(2) i.e. in Form DIR 8 and declaration as to compliance with the Code 
of Conduct of the Company. 
 
None of the Director of the Company is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any other Listed Company 
and the number of their directorship is within the limits laid down under section 165 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 
(VI) Declaration by the independent directors 
 
In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company has 
three Non-Executive Independent Directors in line with the act. The Company has received necessary 
declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that 
they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act. 
 
All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves in the Independent Director 
Data Bank. Further, In the opinion of the Board, all our Independent Directors possess requisite 
qualifications, experience, expertise including the Proficiency and hold high standards of integrity for 
the purpose of Rule 8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 4th July, 2024 to review the performance of 
Non-Independent Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairman of the Company 
including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between Company 
management and Board. 
 
BOARD MEETINGS 

The Board of the Company regularly meets to discuss various Business opportunities. Additional Board 
meetings are convened, as and when required to discuss and decide on various business policies, 
strategies and other businesses. 
 
During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times as on 25.05.2024, 
04.07.2024, 10.09.2024, 26.10.2024, 12.11.2024 and 03.03.2025. 
 
The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings are given below: 
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Name of Director 

 
DIN No. 

No. of Board 
Meetings 
Eligible to 

attend 

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 

Presence at the 
Previous AGM 

of 
F.Y. 2023-24 

Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya 06802410 6 6 Yes 

Mrs. Jignasa T Suvagiya  09702789 6 6 Yes 

Dr. Ravi A Apte 07171123 6 6 Yes 

Mr. Jigneshkumar H Gandhi 09703613 6 6 Yes 

Mr. Nirajkumar B Lila 09703859 6 6 Yes 

Dr. Mansukh J Patel 09709815 6 6 Yes 
 

The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as 
provided in Section 173 of the Act. 
 

GENERAL MEETINGS 

During the year under review, the following General Meetings were held, the details of which are given 
as under: 
 
Sr. No. Type of General Meeting Day and Date of General Meeting 

1 Annual General Meeting Tuesday, 10th September, 2024 

2 EGM through Postal Ballot Monday, 3rd July, 2024 

 
COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

The Board of Directors, in line with the requirement of the act, has formed various committees, details 
of which are given hereunder. 
 
[i] Audit Committee 

The Board has constituted Audit Committee in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. During the year under review, Audit Committee met 3 (Three) times viz. on 25.05.2024, 
04.07.2024 and 12.11.2024. 
 
The composition of the Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given 
below: 
 
Name  Category  Designation Number of meetings during 

the financial year 2023-24 
Eligible to 

attend  
Attended 

Mr. Jigneshkumar Gandhi   Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Chairperson 3 3 

Mr. Nirajkumar B Lila   Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Member 3 3 

Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya Managing Director Member 3 3 

 
The Statutory Auditors of the Company are invited in the meeting of the Committee wherever 
requires. The Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are the regular invitee 
at the Meeting. Recommendations of Audit Committee, wherever/whenever given, have been 
accepted by the Board of Directors. 
 
Audit Committee Policy 

The Audit Committee Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website of the 
Company. 
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Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The 
policy enables the employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Further the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine 
concerns or grievances and provide for adequate safe guards against victimization of the Whistle 
Blower who avails of such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee in exceptional cases. The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit 
Committee from time to time.  
 
The Company hereby affirms that no Director/employee have been denied access to the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year. 
 
The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company.  
 
[ii] Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

The Company has constituted Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee mainly to focus on 
the redressal of Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances, if any, like Transfer / Transmission / Demat of 
Shares; Loss of Share Certificates; Non-receipt of Annual Report; Dividend Warrants, etc. 
 
During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee met 3 (Three) times viz. on 
25.05.2024, 04.07.2024 and 12.11.2024. 
 
The composition of the Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given 
below: 
 
Name  Category  Designation Number of meetings during 

the financial year 2023-24 
Eligible to 

attend  
Attended 

Mr. Nirajkumar B Lila   Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Chairperson 3 3 

Mr. Jigneshkumar Gandhi  Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Member 3 3 

Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya Managing Director Member 3 3 

 
During the year, the Company has received nil Queries/complaints from the Shareholders and all the 
queries/complaints were resolved. There was nil complaint pending to be resolved as on March 31, 
2025. 
 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Policy 

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website 
of the Company.  
 
[iii] Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
The Company has constituted Nomination and Remuneration committee in line with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings are 
generally held for identifying the persons who are qualified to become Directors and may be appointed 
in senior management and recommending their appointments and removal. 
 
During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was not required to held 
any meeting. The composition of the Committee is given below: 
 
Name Category Designation 

Mr. Nirajkumar B Lila   Non-Executive Independent Director Chairperson 
Mr. Jigneshkumar Gandhi   Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya Managing Director Member 
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high-performance 
culture. It enables the Company to attract motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, 
and to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company. The 
Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances to its Executive 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. 
 
Annual increments are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the salary 
scale approved by the members and are effective from April 1 of each year. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the 
website of the Company. 
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees 
and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in the following manners: 
 
•  The performance of the board was evaluated by the board, after seeking inputs from all the 

directors, on the basis of the criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness 
of board processes, information and functioning etc. 

 
•  The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the 

committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, 
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

 
•  The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the 

individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director 
to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful 
and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. 

 
•  In addition, the chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 
 
Separate meeting of independent directors was held on 4th July, 2024 to evaluate the performance of 
non-independent directors, performance of the board as a whole and performance of the chairman, 
taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. Performance 
evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director 
being evaluated. 
 
[iv] Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

As per Section 135(9), where the CSR obligation of the company is less than 50 lacs then the 
constitution of the CSR Committee is not mandatory and the function of the CSR committee should 
be discharged by the Board of such company. However, as a measure of good corporate governance, 
the Company has adopted a CSR policy in line with the applicable provisions of the Act.  
 
During the year under review, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee met 1 (One) time 
viz. on 4th July, 2024. The composition of the Committee and the details of meetings attended by its 
members are given below: 
 
Name  Category  Designation Number of meetings during 

the financial year 2024-25 
Eligible to 

attend  
Attended 

Mr. Nirajkumar B Lila   Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Chairperson 1 1 

Mr. Jigneshkumar Gandhi  Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Member 1 1 

Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya Managing Director Member 1 1 
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Corporate Social Responsibility Initiative 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Company has framed policy on Corporate Social Responsibility.  
 
As part of its initiatives under CSR, the Company has also identified various projects / activities in 
accordance with Schedule VII of the Act. 
 
However, the Company’s total Net Profit as per Section 135, falls below the limit set for mandatory 
CSR contribution / spending by the Company. Hence, there are no separate reports attached for CSR 
activities undertaken during the financial year 2024-25, as required under Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014.  
 
CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE 

During the year, there was no change in Registered Office place of the Company. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Hence, the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India & the relevant Provisions of Section 73 to 76 the Company Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made thereunder are not applicable. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS & SECURITY 

Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statement. 
 
CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

All the Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year were on an Arm’s Length 
basis and in the Ordinary Course of Business. The disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required 
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 is attached as ‘Annexure- A’ 
forms part of this Report. 
 
The details of the related party transactions for the financial year 2024-25 is given in notes of the 
financial statements which is part of Annual Report. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement 
showing the names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the 
limits set out in the said rules will be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
during working hours and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the 
Company and the same will be furnished on request. Having regard to the provisions of the first 
proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid 
information is being sent to the members of the Company. 
 
Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 are provided as an ‘Annexure – B’, forms part of this Report. 
 

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 

During the year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary/ies Company.  
 
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANY 

During the year under review, the Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture Company. 
 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which 
impact the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, 
have occurred between the ends of financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2025 to the date of 
this Report.  
 

 SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, the Company has 
institutionalized the Anti-Sexual Harassment Initiative (ASHI) framework, through which the Company 
addresses complaints of sexual harassment at the all workplaces of the Company as per the Anti-
Sexual Harassment Policy adopted by the Board of Directors.  
 
The Company policy assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. The Company 
has setup an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) for redressal of Complaints. Further, the company 
has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has received nil complaints on sexual harassment, 
out of which nil complaints have been disposed of and nil complaints remained pending as of March 
31, 2025. 
 

ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules 2014: 
 
Conservation of Energy: 

In its endeavor towards conservation of energy, the Company ensures optimal use of energy, avoid 
wastages and conserve energy as far as possible. 
 
i)    The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The Company has taken measures 

and applied strict control system to monitor day to day power consumption, to endeavor to 
ensure the optimal use of energy with minimum extent possible wastage as far as possible.  

 
 The day-to-day consumption is monitored and various ways and means are adopted to reduce 

the power consumption in an effort to save energy. 
 
ii)  The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: The Company 

has not taken any step for utilizing alternate sources of energy. 
 
iii)  The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: During the year under 

review, Company has not incurred any capital investment on energy conservation equipment. 
 
A.  Technology absorption – 

i)    The effort made towards technology absorption: The Company has not imported any technology 
and hence there is nothing to be reported here. 

 
ii)   The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 

substitution: None 
 
iii)  in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year) – 
 a.   The details of technology imported: None  
 b.   The year of import: None 
 c.   Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: None 

d.   If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons t
 hereof: None 

 
B. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL 

C.  Foreign Exchange Earnings & Expenditure: NIL 
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  i)  Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings:   
                                                                                                   (₹ in Lacs)  

Sr. No. Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 
1.   Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL NIL 

 
ii)  Details of Foreign Exchange Expenditure:    (₹ in Lacs) 

Sr. No. Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 
1.   Foreign Exchange Expenditure NIL NIL 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI 

Pursuant to provisions of section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has complied with the 
applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, wherever applicable. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk 
exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to 
minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate it. The mechanism 
works on the principles of probability of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is 
being carried out to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage both business and non-business risks. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has an effective internal control system, which ensures that all the assets of the 
Company are safeguarded and protected against any loss from unauthorized use or disposition. 
 
The Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial 
statements commensurate with the size and nature of operations of the Company. During the year, 
such controls were tested and no material discrepancy or weakness in the Company’s internal controls 
over financial reporting was observed. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. However, 
pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 the Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provisions of certain regulations 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and therefore the 
Company has not provided a separate report on Corporate Governance, although few of the 
information are provided in this report under relevant headings. 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

In terms of Regulation 34 and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a review of the performance of the Company for the year under 
review, Management Discussion and Analysis Report is presented in a separate section which is 
annexed to this Report as ‘Annexure – C’. 
 
AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 

[i] Statutory Auditor and their report 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, 
M/s. Bela Mehta and Associates, Chartered Accountants, Vadodara (FRN: 101073W), were the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the F.y 24-25 and continue to hold the position as such for the F.y 
25-26. 
 
The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under the second 
proviso of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) for the time being in force). The Auditors’ Report for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2025, does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. Further, the Auditors’ 
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Report are with unmodified opinion, self-explanatory does not call for any further comments from the 
Board of Directors.  
 
M/s. Bela Mehta and Associates, Chartered Accountants, have confirmed that they have not been 
disqualified to act as Statutory Auditors of the Company and that their appointment is within the 
maximum ceiling limit as prescribed under Section 141 of Companies Act, 2013 / relevant statute. 
 
[ii] Secretarial Auditor and their Report: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. K Parikh and Associates, is appointed as a 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. It is hereby confirmed that the 
Company has complied with the provisions of SS-1 i.e. Secretarial Standard on meetings of Board of 
Directors and SS-2, i.e. Secretarial Standards on General Meetings.  
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with The Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder and as amended from time to time, the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, and all other applicable provisions, if any, the Company has 
obtained a Secretarial Audit Report for the F.y 24-25 from M/s. K Parikh and Associates, Company 
Secretaries and is annexed herewith as “Annexure – D”. 
 
The reply of management against the observation/Remarks, if any, made by Secretarial 
Auditor in their Secretarial Audit Report are self-explanatory. 
 
Further, the appointment of M/s. K Parikh and Associates, Company Secretaries as a Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company is valid till the F.y 28-29. 
 
FRAUD’S REPORTED BY AUDITORS OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE 
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT U/S 143(12) 
 
There were no frauds reported by the auditors under section 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013 during 
their course of audit for the financial year 2024-25. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

The Company believes that its human resources are one of the most crucial assets and critical 
enablers of the Company’s growth. To that extent, the Company engages with its employees to hone 
their skill sets and equip them with knowledge and know-how. It is also deeply invested in establishing 
its brand name to attract and retain the best talent in the market.  
 
During the period under review, employee relations continued to be healthy, cordial, and harmonious 
at all levels, and the Company aims to maintain such relations with the employees going forward as 
well.   
 
ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 12 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 including amendments thereunder, 
the draft Annual Return for the Financial Year 2024-25 is being made available on the website of the 
Company. 
 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD 

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, such accounts and records 
are not made and maintained by the Company. 
 
DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTACY CODE 2016 
 

During the financial year under review, there were Nil application/s made or proceeding were pending 
in the name of the company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
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DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND 
VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
 

During the Financial year under review, there was Nil one time settlement of Loans taken from Banks 
and Financial institutions. 
 
LIQUIDITY 

The Company maintains sufficient cash to meet the strategic objectives. The Board clearly understand 
that the liquidity in the Balance Sheet is to ensure balance between earning adequate returns and the 
need to cover financial and business risks. Liquidity also enables the Company to position itself for 
quick responses to market dynamics.  
 
WEBSITE 

In compliance with the Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 the Company has maintained a functional website namely https://jtphospitals.com/ 
containing information about the Company. 
 
SEBI COMPLAINTS REDRESS SYSTEM (SCORES) 

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redressal system. 
The salient features of this system are centralized database of all complaints, online upload of 
Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned companies and online viewing by investors of 
actions taken on the complaint and its current status. Your Company has been registered on 
SEBI SCORES Portal and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints received through 
SCORES portal or otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint. 
The Company has received Nil complaint through the SCORES portal during financial year 2024-
25. 
 
GREEN INITIATIVE 

In compliance with Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only 
through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/Depositories.  
 
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also be available on the 
Company’s website https://jtphospitals.com/corporate/annual-general-meeting 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Board of Directors has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the 
requirement of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. The Insider Trading Policy of the Company lays down guidelines and 
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company 
as well as consequences of disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company as 
well as consequences of violation. The Policy has been formulated to regulate, monitor and 
ensure reporting of deals by employees and to maintain the highest ethical standards of dealing 
in Company’s shares. 
 
The Insider Trading Policy of the Company covering the “Code of practices and procedures for 
Fair disclosures of unpublished price sensitive information” is available on the website of the 
Company. 
 
REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARD'S REPORT {Section.131(1)} 

The company has not made any modification or alteration in its Financial Statement / Board Report 
in respect of last three financial year. 
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DATA PRIVACY, DATA PROTECTION, AND CYBERSECURITY 
 
The Company is committed to upholding the highest standards of data privacy and protection. In light 
of the increasing reliance on digital infrastructure, the Company has implemented comprehensive 
cybersecurity and data protection policies, aligned with industry best practices and the evolving 
regulatory framework, including provisions under the Information Technology Act, 2000, and 
applicable data protection regulations. 
 
Key initiatives undertaken during the year include: 

 Deployment of end-to-end encryption and multi-layered security protocols for data storage and 
transfer. 

 

 Third-party cybersecurity audits and vulnerability assessments. 

 Employee training programs on data protection and cybersecurity awareness. 

 Strict access control mechanisms and implementation of role-based permissions. 

 Data breach response protocols in accordance with the CERT-In guidelines. 
 
The Company continues to invest in digital infrastructure to ensure robust protection of stakeholder 
information and business continuity. 
 
STRUCTURED DIGITAL DATABASE (“SDD”) 

Maintenance of Structured Digital Database (“SDD”) has been mandatory since April 1, 2019 in 
view of the relevant provisions under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
(‘PIT Regulations’). The Company Have Installed SDD Services. The Company regularly updates 
entries in this software and submitted report quarterly to stock exchanges under Regulation 
3(5) & (6) of SEBI PIT Regulations. 
 
THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR 
STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, there was no application made and proceeding initiated / 
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any Financial and/or Operational 
Creditors against the Company.  
 
As on the date of this report, there is no application or proceeding pending against the company under 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
AUDIT TRAIL APPLICABILITY (AUDIT AND AUDITORS) RULES 2014 - RULE 11 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 2013. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on the preservation of 
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention.  

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares.  

APPOINTMENT OF DESIGNATED PERSON (MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION) RULES 
2014 - RULE 9 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013. 

In accordance with Rule 9 of the Appointment of Designated Person (Management and Administration) 
Rules 2014, it is essential for the company to designate a responsible individual for ensuring 
compliance with statutory obligations. 

The company has appointed Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya (DIN: 06802410), Managing Director of the 
Company as a Designated person for ensuring compliance with statutory obligations. 
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GENERAL DISCLOSURE 

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in 
section 134 (3) of the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 
provisions of the Act and listing regulations, to the extent the transactions took place on those 
items during the year. Your directors’ further state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect 
of the following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review; 
 
a. Buy Back Of Securities: - The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the 

year under review. 
 
b.  Sweat Equity: - The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under 

review. 
 
c.  Bonus Shares: - No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review. 
 
d.  Employees Stock Option Plan: - The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to 

the employees. 
 
e. Private Placement Of Shares: The Company has not issued any Equity Shares through private 

placement. 
 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of 
their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 
 
a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed and that no material departures have been made from the same; 
 
b)    The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of 
the Company for that year; 

 
c)  The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

 
d)    The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 on going 

concern basis. 
 
e)     The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 
f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis and other parts of the report describing 
the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be forward-looking 
statements. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied due to various 
risks and uncertainties. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations 
include economic and political conditions in India and other countries, if any, in which the Company 
may operate. Other factors that may impact the Company’s operations include volatility in interest 
rates, changes in government regulations and policies, tax laws, statutes, and other incidental factors.   
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Whole-time Director 
(DIN: 09702789) 

Registered Office  
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Date: 28th June, 2025 
Place: Vadodara 
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Annexure- A 
 
FORM NO. AOC -2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
The Company has identified following related party transactions during the year. 
 
1.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

Sr.  
No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil 
2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 
3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 
4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 
Nil 

5 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ Nil 
6 Date of approval by the Board Nil 
7 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 
8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188 
N. A 

 
2.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 
Sr No. Particulars Details 
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 

As mentioned below 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction As mentioned below 

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

As mutually agreed 

e) Date of approval by the Board Since the transaction entered into, 
is in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm’s length 
basis, there is no requirement of 
Board’s approval. 

f) Amount paid as advances, if any -- 

g) Amount of contract or arrangement As mentioned below 

 
A. Key managerial Personnel 

 
Sr. No. Name of Person Designation 

1 Mr. Tushar K Suvagiya Managing Director 

2 Mrs. Jignasa T Suvagiya Whole-time Director 

3 Mr.  Ravi A Apte Non-Executive Director 
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B. Relatives of key managerial personnel and Enterprises over which key managerial 

personnel and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence are as 
follows:     

Name  Relation  
Mrs. Swati R Apte Relative of Director 
Dhyey Healthcare Private Limited  Common Directorship 
Short Stay Hospital Private Limited Common Directorship 

Justright Home Appliances Private Limited Common Directorship 

Laksham Automobiles Private Limited Common Directorship 

Shayona Medical and Provision Store Director Proprietary Concern 

Karshan Suvagiya Relative of Managing Director 

Jaya Suvagiya Relative of Managing Director 

Dhyey Suvagiya Relative of Managing Director 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
C. Nature of Transactions with Related Party In Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025 

As at  
March 31, 2024 

Loan from Director     
Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya     368.50  19.00  
Loan from Others     
       -                - 
Repayment of Loan from Director     
Tushar Suvagiya 318.60            47.00  
   
Intercorporate Loans Given     
Laksham Automobiles Private Limited 0.00 300.00 
Short Stay Hospital Private Limited 0.00 39.09 
   
Repayment of Intercorporate Loans Given     
Laksham Automobiles Private Limited 0.00 300.00 
                              
Income   
Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya 81.73 0.00 
   
Expenses     
APRL Pathlabs Private Limited              36.64             29.73  
Dr. Ravi A Apte    33.02                      19.21  
Dr. Swati R Apte 9.42 16.10 
Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya  61.20 4.80 
Mrs. Jignasa T Suvagiya 24.00 8.00 
Mr. Karshan Suvagiya 7.20 4.80 
Mrs. Jayaben Suvagiya 16.80 11.20 
Mr. Dhyey Suvagiya 16.80 11.20 
   
Purchases – Materials/fixed assets     
Shayona Medical and Provision Stores                    -                2.21  
Short Stay Hospitals Private Limited - 104.09 
Justright Home Appliances Private Limited  0.95 - 
Smital Petroleum 6.77 - 
   
Purchases of Proprietary Business     
Jambusar General Hospital and Maternity Home                  -             500.00 
Shayona Medical and Provision Stores     - 120.00 
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Details of related party balances receivable / (payable) outstanding during the year: 
In Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025 

As at  
March 31, 2024 

Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya           (49.89)                 - 
Dr. Ravi A Apte           (30.42)          (30.42) 
Dr. Ripal S Padmani            (7.50)                       (7.50)  
Dr. Subhash L Padmani (0.26) (0.26) 
Jayshree Kolambekar (10.98) (10.98) 
Shayona Medical and Provision Stores                   -           (2.93) 
APRL Pathlabs Private Limited            (12.33)    (8.70) 
Dhyey Healthcare Private Limited 2.15     2.15  
Tushar Suvagiya – Rent deposit 18.00 18.00 
Jignasa Suvagiya – Rent deposit 30.00 30.00 
Dhyey Suvagiya – Rent deposit 42.00 42.00 
Jaya Suvagiya – Rent deposit 42.00 42.00 
Karshan Suvagiya – Rent deposit 18.00 18.00 
Narsingh Lalkiya – Rent Deposit 50.00 0.00 
Smital Petroleum (1.90) 0.00 

   
 

 
 
By Order of the Board 
For Aatmaj Healthcare Limited 
 
 
Tushar K Suvagiya 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 06802410) 
 
Jignasa T Suvagiya 
Whole-time Director 
(DIN: 09702789) 

Registered Office  
"Jupiter Hospital", Opp. ICAI Bhavan, 
Sunpharma Ataladra Road, Vadodara - 
390012, Gujarat, IN 
 
 
 
Date: 28th June, 2025 
Place: Vadodara 
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Annexure – B 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under.  
 
A.  Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 
 
a)     The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial 

year: 
 

Sr. 
No. Name Designation Nature of 

Payment 

Ratio against median 
employee’s 
remuneration 

1 Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya Managing Director Remuneration Nil 
2 Mrs. Jignasa T Suvagiya Whole-time Director Remuneration Nil 
3 Dr. Ravi A Apte Non-Executive Director NA  NA 

4 Mr. Jigneshkumar Gandhi Non-Executive 
Independent Director Sitting Fees Nil 

5 
 
Mr. Nirajkumar Lila 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director Sitting Fees Nil 

6 
 
Dr. Mansukh Patel 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director Sitting Fees Nil 

7 
 
Mr. Pratik Gandhi Chief Financial Officer Salary Nil 

8  
Ms. Poorvi Gattani Company Secretary Salary Nil 

 
b)  The Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 

Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 7.5 %  
  
c)  The percentage increase/decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

There is no change in median remuneration of Employees in F.Y 2024-25 from F.Y. 2023-24. 
 
d)  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company is 161.  
 
e)  Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration: There is no change during the year in the average salary 
of the employees. 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
Notes: 

1. For considering Median and Average remuneration of employees, only those employees who were 
with the Company throughout the Financial Year 2024-25 have been considered. 
 

2. Ratio against median employee’s remuneration in respect of Non-Executive Directors are not 
provided since they are not being paid any remuneration for serving the Company in capacity of 
Non-Executive Directors. 
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3. Ratio against median employee’s remuneration in respect of Company Secretary and Chief Financial 
Officer have not changed during the F.Y 2024-25. 
 

4. For Counting No, of employees on rolls of the Company, we have considered only those employees 
for who were in the employment for atleast 9 months during F.Y 2024-25 and those employees who 
were in the employment as on March 31, 2025. 

 
 

By Order of the Board 
For Aatmaj Healthcare Limited 
 
 
Tushar K Suvagiya 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 06802410) 
 
Jignasa T Suvagiya 
Whole-time Director 
(DIN: 09702789) 

Registered Office  
"Jupiter Hospital", Opp. ICAI Bhavan, 
Sunpharma Ataladra Road, Vadodara - 
390012, Gujarat, IN 
 
 
 
Date: 28th June, 2025  
Place: Vadodara 
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Annexure – D 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

 
Indian Healthcare Industry Overview 
 
As the Indian healthcare sector is reputed to be one of the largest markets, projected to reach $638 billion 
by 2025, the Government of India has also identified the sector as a crucial growth opportunity in the Union 
Budget 2025 announcement. With a substantial allocation of Rs 99,859 crore to the healthcare sector, 
marking a 9.8 per cent increase from the previous fiscal year, significant funds have been earmarked to 
further strengthen healthcare operations. Additionally, the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme for 
the pharma industry has been allocated Rs 2,445 crore, reflecting the government’s focus on bolstering 
domestic manufacturing and innovation in the sector. This funding will not only accelerate the expansion 
of healthcare infrastructure and rural healthcare connectivity but also foster greater healthcare equity.  
 
Further, initiatives such as the introduction of on-arrival visas to promote medical tourism and schemes 
offering term loans of up to Rs 2 crore to 5 lakh marginalised first-time women entrepreneurs highlight the 
government’s commitment to broadening opportunities. 
 
Building on last year’s focus on integrating new technologies, which nudged over 77 per cent of healthcare 
startups to invest in machine learning (ML) and artificial intelligence (AI), the Union Budget 2025 announces 
the establishment of India’s Centre of Excellence for AI. The expansion of the Atal Tinkering Labs (ATL) 
initiative, aiming to establish 50,000 ATLs in government schools over the next five years, will further 
propel research within the Indian healthcare sector. 
 
As private healthcare platforms have improved accessibility by offering remote healthcare services at 
affordable prices, and government initiatives like the Ayushman Bharat Digital Mission prioritising digital 
health records, this year’s budget focuses on providing broadband connectivity to at least 90 per cent of 
anchor institutions including schools, primary health care centres in rural areas, Anganwadi centres, and 
panchayat offices by 2030, reinforces India’s drive towards giving much-needed attention to discussions 
surrounding healthcare equity in the world. 
 
With the Government of India taking significant steps to position the country as a global leader in healthcare 
innovation, it is essential to recognise the potential impact of these budgetary measures on propelling the 
Indian healthcare industry forward in 2025. 
 
Government Initiatives 

Union Budget 2025-26 
 
The government has increased investment limits for MSMEs, aiming to enhance their capacity and 
competitiveness. Additionally, introduction of a new credit card scheme tailored for micro-enterprises offers 
a credit limit of Rs 5 lakh to businesses registered on the Udyam portal. The government plans to issue 10 
million of these customised credit cards in the first year, providing greater financial flexibility to small-scale 
entrepreneurs. These measures underscore the government’s commitment to strengthening the MSME 
sector, which currently comprises over one crore registered enterprises, employs approximately 7.5 crore 
individuals, and contributes around 36 per cent to the country’s manufacturing output and nearly 45 per 
cent to exports. Furthermore, the establishment of Centres of Excellence for AI with investment worth Rs 
500 crore will provide a platform for tech-driven healthcare solutions. Additionally, a new scheme offering 
term loans of up to Rs 2 crore to 5 lakh marginalised first-time women entrepreneurs highlights the 
government’s commitment to broadening opportunities for women in the healthcare and entrepreneurial 
sectors. By empowering entrepreneurs with these resources, the government reflects its commitment 
towards a culture of innovation to improve patient care and operational efficiency, respecting sustainable 
healthcare business. 
 
With the launch of the initiative 'Heal in India', the Union Budget 2025 positions India as a top medical 
tourism destination with the introduction of on-arrival visas for international patients. 
 
The Indian government is actively involved in shaping and strengthening the healthcare industry through 
various policies, initiatives, and investments. These include the Ayushman Bharat program , digital health 
initiatives, and increased budget allocations.  
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Key Government Initiatives and Policies: 

 Ayushman Bharat (National Health Protection Mission): This flagship program aims to provide health 
insurance coverage to a large segment of the population, particularly the vulnerable and economically 
weaker sections.  
 

 Ayushman Bharat Digital Mission (ABDM): The ABDM focuses on creating a digital health ecosystem 
by linking health records, enabling digital health IDs (ABHAs), and promoting interoperability between 
healthcare providers and systems.  

 
 WIN: A digital platform for managing and tracking immunization under the Universal Immunization 

Programme, aiming for better reach and efficiency.  
 

 e-Sanjeevani: India's national telemedicine service, providing remote consultations and expanding 
access to healthcare, particularly in underserved areas.  

 
 National Health Mission (NHM): A comprehensive program focused on improving health outcomes, 

particularly in rural areas, through various interventions.  
 
 Increased Budget Allocation: The government has consistently increased the healthcare budget, 

demonstrating a commitment to strengthening the sector.  
 

 Regulation of e-pharmacies and Telemedicine: The government is working on regulating online 
pharmacies and telemedicine practices to ensure safety and quality.  

 
 Focus on Medical Devices: The government is working on a new bill to regulate medical devices, 

aiming to improve their safety and effectiveness.  
 

 Promoting Traditional Medicine: Initiatives like the MoU with Indonesia to establish quality assurance 
standards for traditional medicine highlight the government's focus on integrating traditional and 
modern healthcare systems. 

 
 Aatmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan: This initiative includes measures to boost domestic manufacturing of 

pharmaceuticals and medical devices.  
 
Challenges and Disparities 

 Resource Gaps: Despite increased investment, there are concerns about the adequacy of resources, 
particularly in public health infrastructure.  

 Regional Disparities: Significant differences exist in healthcare access and quality between urban and 
rural areas.  

 Quality of Care: There are concerns about the quality of care in some areas, including overcrowding 
in clinics and a lack of accountability.  

 Access to Medicines: Barriers to access to medicines and healthcare services remain a challenge.  
 
Future Outlook 

The Indian government's continued focus on digital health, insurance coverage, and strengthening 
infrastructure is expected to further transform the healthcare landscape. However, addressing the 
challenges related to resource allocation, regional disparities, and quality of care will be crucial for achieving 
equitable and accessible healthcare for all. 
 
Management Overview 

Year 2024-25 was a mix fruit of bunch for the Company as Business at our units locates at Vadodara & 
Jambusar has grown to 20% -25%. We are getting mix response at our new hospitals at Madhyapradesh 
at JTP Hospital Indore & JTP Sardar Patel Hospital Badnawar.  
 
As Health sector in India is in transformation process as Government is providing Fix Low price cashless 
treatment cover under banner of PMJAY (Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana) scheme. As every scheme has 
pros & cons. This scheme also has same - 
 
Pros  
 1. As free treatment people are easily ready for medical assistance.   
 2. Less requirement of Marketing & Publicity.  
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Cons  
 1. Fix package rate are less than current market rates.  
 2. Payment cycle is not regular.  

3. As profit margin are low so investment in newer technology and senior manpower has always 
been challenging.  

 
Other Positive Remarks  

1. Our new vertical IVF Center 1st two center will be operational by 1st November 2025 one at 
Karelibaug Area Vadodara & Other at Jambusar Town district Bharuch , Gujrat  

 
2. We are reaching to near financial break even at our TWO unit at Madhyapradesh in financial year 

2025-26 I.e. current year 
 
Digital Platform for Healthcare Services 

By investing in digital health, Aatmaj Healthcare aims to improve patient engagement, enhance the quality 
of care, and expand its reach to underserved areas, ensuring that more people have access to timely and 
effective healthcare services. 
 
Aatmaj Healthcare Limited is poised to significantly enhance its digital offerings with the upcoming launch 
of its proprietary mobile applications on both Android and Apple Store platforms. These applications are 
designed to provide a seamless, user-friendly experience, enabling patients to manage their healthcare 
needs conveniently from their mobile devices. 
 

The Aatmaj Healthcare app will offer a wide range of features tailored to meet the diverse needs of patients. 
Key functionalities will include: 
 
 Personalized Updates: Patients will receive timely notifications and updates related to their health, 

treatment plans, and upcoming appointments. 

 Medical Records Management: The app will securely store patients' medical records, making it 
easy for them to access their health history anytime, anywhere. 

 Appointment Booking: Patients will be able to schedule appointments with doctors and specialists 
at their convenience, directly through the app. 

 Online Consultations: The app will facilitate virtual consultations, allowing patients to consult with 
healthcare professionals from the comfort of their homes. 

 Post-Operative Care: The app will feature instructional content on post-operative exercises to aid 
in recovery and ensure patients are following best practices for rehabilitation. 

 Diet Plans: Patients will have access to personalized diet charts created by nutritionists, tailored to 
their specific health needs and goals. 

 Additional Services: The app will offer a variety of other services, including medication reminders, 
wellness tips, and access to health-related educational resources. 

The introduction of this app aligns with Aatmaj Healthcare Limited's commitment to leveraging digital 
technology to improve patient care and engagement. By integrating these comprehensive digital services, 
Aatmaj Healthcare is setting a new standard for patient-centered care in the digital age. 

 
By Order of the Board 
For Aatmaj Healthcare Limited 
 
Tushar K Suvagiya 
Managing Director 
(DIN: 06802410) 
 
Jignasa T Suvagiya 
Whole-time Director 
(DIN: 09702789) 

Registered Office  
"Jupiter Hospital", Opp. ICAI Bhavan, 
Sunpharma Ataladra Road, Vadodara - 
390012, Gujarat, IN 
 
 
 
Date: 28th June, 2025 
Place: Vadodara 
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Annexure - D 

Secretarial Audit Report 

Form No. MR-3 
For The Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To,  
The Members,  
Aatmaj Healthcare Limited  
CIN: L85100GJ2014PLC079062 
"Jupiter Hospital", Opp. ICAI Bhavan,  
Sunpharma Ataladra Road,  
Vadodara – 390012, Gujarat, India 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate governance practices by Aatmaj Healthcare Limited, CIN: 
L85100GJ2014PLC079062, (hereinafter called “the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions of:  
 
1.  The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder, as applicable;  

2.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  

3.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

4.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

 
a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 and circulars / guidelines / amendments issued thereunder; 
 
b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

and circulars/guidelines/amendments issued thereunder; 
 
c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 and circulars/guidelines/Amendments issued there under; 
 
d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 
 
e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018. 

 
5.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, as may be revised 

from time to time; 
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I further report that – 

The Company being primarily engaged in healthcare services and running a multi-speciality hospital at 
various places. I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for system and 
mechanism framed by the Company for compliances of the law specifically applicable to Company: 
  
During the year under the report, the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above read with circulars, notifications and amended rules, regulations, standards etc. issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Securities and Exchange Board of India and such regulatory authorities 
for such acts, rules, regulations, standards etc., as may be applicable, from time to time issued for 
compliances, have been complied with by the Company. 
 
The Company’s Equity has been listed w.e.f. June 30, 2023 at the NSE Emerge Platform (SME) of National 
stock Exchange of India Limited.  
 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

i. Revised Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE Emerge Platform).  
 

During the reporting period under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regulations, and 
Standards were not applicable to the Company: 

 
i.      Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; and 
 
ii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993; - The Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue & Share Transfer Agent. 
However, the Company has appointed MUFG Intime India Private Limited as Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the reporting period under review. 
 

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and 
guidelines/circular/amendments thereto; 
 

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
 

vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 
 

I further report that – 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Director, Independent Directors and Woman Director. There are no changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors during the period under review.  
 
Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 
None of the Board Members have communicated dissenting views in the matters / agenda proposed from 
time to time for consideration of the Board and Committees thereof, during the year under the report, 
hence were not required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes 
 
I further report that - 

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 

I further report that during the period under review- 
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1. The Company sought approval from Members of a Special Resolution by Postal Ballot through e-
Voting, which was concluded on July 3, 2024 for variation in terms of the Objects of the Issue of the 
Prospectus dtd June 13, 2023. 
 

2. The 10th Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company was held on 10th September, 2024 
through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means (OVAM). 

 
For K Parikh and Associates 
Company Secretaries 
ICSI Unique Code: S2023GJ947300  
PR No. 6753/2025 

 
Ketki S Parikh  
Proprietor 
FCS No.: 12786 C P No.: 26487      Date: 28th June, 2025  
UDIN: F012786G000786011      Place: Vadodara 
        
 
Note: This Report is to be read with Annexure 1 and it form integral part of this report. 
 
Annexure I 

To,  
The Members,  
Aatmaj Healthcare Limited  
CIN: L85100GJ2014PLC079062 
"Jupiter Hospital", Opp. ICAI Bhavan,  
Sunpharma Ataladra Road,  
Vadodara – 390012, Gujarat, India 
 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
 
2.  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis, 
on the records and documents provided by the Management of the Company, to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices followed by me 
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3.     I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of 
the Company.  

4.  The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification of procedures on 
test basis. 

5.    Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For K Parikh and Associates 
Company Secretaries 
ICSI Unique Code: S2023GJ947300  
PR No. 6753/2025 

 
Ketki S Parikh  
Proprietor 
FCS No.: 12786 C P No.: 26487      Date: 28th June, 2025  
UDIN: F012786G000786011      Place: Vadodara 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To, 
The Members of  
AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED 
CIN: L85100GJ2014PLC079062 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
F.y 2024-2025 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the Financial Statements of AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss, (statement of 
changes in equity) and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial 
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
[hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”]. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit/loss, (changes in equity) and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 
“Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon” 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the [information included in the Director report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
 

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 
 

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial 
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
 

(i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.  
 

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (the Statement of Changes in Equity) 
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 
 

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 
 

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

 (f) Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited Financial Statements is less than Rs.50 
Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is 
less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect 
to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; 
 

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 

  a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position. 
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  b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

  c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

  d. i. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 

   ii The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  
 

   iii Based on such audit procedures which we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any 
material mis-statement. 
 

  h The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year is in accordance 
with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013”, Hence clause not applicable. 
 

  i Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used 
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that 
audit trail was not enabled at the database level to log any direct changes for the 
accounting software used for maintaining the books of accounts. The same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit 
trail feature being tampered with. 
 
 

For Bela Mehta & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 101073W 
 
 
CA Shital S Parikh      Date: 27th May, 2025         
Partner       Place: Vadodara 
M.No. 121609 
UDIN: 25121609BMOBAB3994 
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

 
The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED for the 
year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 
On the basis of the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that: 
 

1. (a) A. The company has the basic records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment. However, these records need to be 
organized so as to identify all costs with individual assets and also show the location and 
work out written down value of each item. 
 

  B. The company has the basic records showing full particulars, including sufficient 
description, classification and situation of Intangible Assets. 
 

 (b) Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. However, report of such 
physical verification was not made available to us.  
 

 (c) The title deeds of the immovable properties, which are free hold, are held in the name of the 
Company. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and 
disclosed as Property, Plant & Equipment in the financial statements, the lease agreements 
are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement. If not 
provide the following details: 
 

  Description 
of property 

Gross 
carrying 
value 

Held in 
The 

name of 

Whether 
promoter, 
director or 

their relative 
or employee 

Period held – 
indicate 
range, 
where 

appropriate 

Reason 
for not being 
held in the 

name of the 
company* 

  - - - - - *also indicate if in dispute 
  NA NA NA NA NA NA 
   
 (d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, no revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment or Intangible 
assets or both has incurred during the year. 
 

 (e) No any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 
made thereunder, and hence, reporting under cluse (1)(e) of the order is not applicable. 
 

2. (a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is 
appropriate. The discrepancies between physical stocks and book stocks of 10% or more in 
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed and have been appropriately adjusted 
and properly dealt with in the books of the account. However, report of such physical 
verification was not made available to us. 
 

 (b) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, the Company has been sanctioned Overdraft limits in excess of 
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institution on the basis mortgaged of 
the immovable of property instead of security of current assets. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause (2)(b) of the order are not applicable to the company.  
 

3. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has provided the unsecured loan to the companies and other 
parties during the year. 
 

 (a) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, 
or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity [not applicable to companies 
whose principal business is to give loans], if so, indicate- 
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  A. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not provided any secured 
or unsecured loan or any guarantees or security to Subsidiaries. Joint Ventures and 
associates during the year. 
 

  B. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has provided business 
advances/unsecured loan of Rs. 682.27 lacs to parties other than subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates during the year. 
 

 (b) According to information and explanation given to us that the loan and advances given to the 
companies and other entity which is not prejudicial to the company’s interest. 
 

 (c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, there is agreement has been made for advances given to 
companies and other entity for development of business infrastructure in Gujarat, Rajasthan 
and Madhya Pradesh state and if they failed to provide as per agreement time they have to 
pay interest with the principal of advances  as per terms of agreement so there is no terms  
regarding schedule of repayments of principal and payment of interest etc.   
 

 (d) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, there is agreement has been made for advances given to 
companies and other entity for development of business infrastructure in Gujarat, Rajasthan 
and Madhya Pradesh state and if they failed to provide as per agreement time they have to 
pay interest with the principal of advances  as per terms of agreement so there is no terms  
regarding schedule of repayments of principal and payment of interest etc. Therefore, we are 
not able to comment about repayment of principal amount and interest as terms of repayment 
are not stipulated. 
 

 (e) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, there is agreement has been made for advances given to 
companies and other entity for development of business infrastructure in Gujarat, Rajasthan 
and Madhya Pradesh state and if they failed to provide as per agreement time they have to 
pay interest with the principal of advances  as per terms of agreement so there is no terms  
regarding schedule of repayments of principal and payment of interest etc. Therefore, we are 
not able to comment about repayment of principal amount and interest as terms of repayment 
are not stipulated. 
 

 (f) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, the company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans  either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, if 
so, specify the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total loans granted, aggregate 
amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are 0.30 % (Rs. 2,15,000 / 7,04,86,727*100) as per applicable of 
clause 76 of section 2 of the companies act, 2013. 
 

4. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the provisions of 
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act have been complied by the company. 
 

5. Based on our scrutiny of the company’s records and according to the information and explanations 
provided by the management, in our opinion, the company has not accepted any loans or deposits 
which are ‘deposits’ within the meaning of Rule 2(b) of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014. 
 

6. The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to the Rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

7 (a) The company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, 
income tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it.   
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 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Goods and 

Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess 
and any other statutory dues outstanding on account of any dispute.  
 

8. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the 
management, we are of the opinion that the company does not have any transactions that are not 
recorded in the books of account and that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
 

9. (a) In our Opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or 
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.   

   
 (b) In Our Opinion, the company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 

or other lender. 
 

 (c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the company 
were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained during the year.  
 

 (d) On the overall examination of the financial statements of the company, funds raised on short 
term basis have, prime facie, not been utilized during the year for long term purposes by the 
company  
 

 (e) The company did not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year and 
hence, reporting under cluse (9)(e) of the order is not applicable. 
 

 (f) The company did not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year and 
hence, reporting under cluse (9)(f) of the order is not applicable. 
 

10. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not 
applicable. Though the Company has made public issue during the F.y 2023-24 and the details 
of IPO proceeds which are not utilised till the date of balance sheet has been kept in the form 
of FDR in the bank.  

    
(Rs. in Lacs) 

Sr. 
No. 

Objects as per Prospectus Allocation  
as per 

Prospectus 

Fund utilised up 
to March 31, 

2025 

Balance as on 
March 31, 2025 

1 Repayment/Prepayment in full or 
part of existing secured debt of the 
company 

900.00 900.00                   -   

2 Funding the working capital 
requirements of the company 

600.00 600.00 
  

                   -   

3 Purchase of medical equipment for 
hospitals of our company and/or 
newly acquired or set up hospitals 

913.11                                    
- 

913.11 

4 Our inorganic growth initiatives 
through acquisitions and other 
strategic initiatives 

620.00 620.00  -  

5 General Corporate Expenses 496.89 496.89  -  

6 Issue Expenses 310.00 310.00                        -   

  Total Rs. In Lacs 3840.00 2926.89 913.11 
 

  
(b) 

 
In our opinion during the year the company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during 
the year and hence reporting under clause 10(b) of the order is not applicable.  
 

11. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or no 
fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.   
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 (b) To the best of our knowledge, no any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and 
up to the date of this report. 
 

 (c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle-blower complaints received 
during the year by the company. 
 

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a 
Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause 12 (a),(b),(c) of the order is not applicable.   

   
13. In our opinion, the company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 

177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial 
statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

14. (a) According explanation and information given to us that the company is under process of 
appointment of internal auditor during the year.  
 

 (b) The report of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were not considered by us as 
the company is under process of appointment of internal auditor.  
 

15. According explanation and information given to us that the company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence, reporting under clause 15 
of the order is not applicable 
 

16. (a) According explanation and information given to us that the company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and hence 
, reporting under clause 16(a) of the order is not applicable. 
 

 (b) According explanation and information given to us that the company has not conducted any 
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration 
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence, 
reporting under clause 16(b) of the order is not applicable. 
 

 (c) According explanation and information given to us that the company is not a Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence , 
reporting under clause 16(c) of the order is not applicable. 
 

 (d) According explanation and information given to us that the company is not a Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence , 
reporting under clause 16(d) of the order is not applicable. 
 

17. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year covered under audit and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 
 

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.  
 

19. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has to come our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.  
 

20. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 
unspent amount under second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act 
pursuant to any project other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) (a) of the order 
is not applicable. 
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 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 

amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 
pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance with 
the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of 
the order is not applicable. 
 

21. According to the information and explanation given to us that company does not have any 
subsidiaries, associates or joint venture and hence, reporting under clause 21 of the order is not 
applicable. 
 

 
 

For Bela Mehta and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 101073W 
 
 
CA Shital S Parikh 
Partner 
M.No. 121609 
UDIN: 25121609BMOBAB3994 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

               Date: 27th May, 2025 
               Place: Vadodara      
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31/03/2025 
   In  Lakhs 
Particulars Note No. as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
Shareholders’ funds    
Share capital 2.1 1130.00 1130.00 
Reserves and surplus 2.2 3882.15 3818.22 
  5012.15 4948.22 
Share application money pending allotment  - - 
    
Non-current liabilities    
Long-term borrowings 2.3 156.08 124.00 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2.4 88.51 81.36 
  244.59 205.36 
Current liabilities    
Short-term borrowings 2.5 850.22 423.87 
Trade payables 2.6   
 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 
 - - 

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 

 145.57 132.01 

Other current liabilities 2.7 19.74 6.17 
Short-term provisions 2.8 52.78 52.77 
  1068.31 614.83 

TOTAL  6325.05 5768.40 
 ASSETS    
Non-current assets    
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets    
     Property, Plant and Equipment 2.9 1229.67 1251.72 
     Intangible assets 3.0 570.35 566.16 
     Capital work-in-progress 3.1 0.16 - 
     Intangible assets under development  - - 
  1800.17 1817.88 
Non-current investments  - - 
Deferred tax assets (net)  - - 
  1800.17 1817.88 
Current assets    
Current investments  - - 
Inventories 3.2 71.27 64.10 
Trade receivables 3.3 2458.33 2061.68 
Cash and cash equivalents 3.4 1216.23 1080.92 
Short-term loans and advances 3.5 704.87 688.28 
Other current assets 3.6 74.18 55.55 
  4524.87 3950.52 
Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts 1.0   

TOTAL  6325.05 5768.40 
   
In terms of our attached report of even date 

For BELA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 101073W 

By Order of the Board,  
For AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED  

  

CA Shital S Parikh 
(Partner) 

Tushar Suvagiya 
(Managing Director) 
(DIN: 06802410) 

Jignasa Suvagiya 
(Wholetime Director) 

(DIN: 09702789) 

Pratik Gandhi 
(CFO) 

Poorvi Gattani 
(Company 
Secretary) M.No. 121609 

UDIN: 25121609BMOBAB3994 
 
Date : 27th May, 2025  
Place : Vadodara 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2025 
 

   In  Lakhs except earning per share 

Particulars Note No. For the Year Ended 
31/03/2025 

For the Year Ended 
31/03/2024 

Revenue from operations 3.7 1953.34 1573.81 
Other income 3.8 131.67 84.68 

Total Income   2085.01 1658.48 
    
Expenses    
Cost of materials consumed 3.9 247.81 246.42 
Purchases Of Stock-In-Trade  - - 
Changes In Inventories Of Finished Goods 
Work-In-Progress And Stock-In-Trade 

 - - 

Employee Benefits Expenses 4.0 532.08 356.85 
Finance Costs 4.1 88.35 124.91 
Depreciation And Amortization Expense 4.2 92.09 80.84 
Other Expenses 4.3 1017.61 715.20 
Total Expenses  1977.93 1524.22 

    
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and 
tax 

 107.08 134.27 

Exceptional items  - - 
Profit before extraordinary items and tax  107.08 134.27 
Extraordinary Items  - - 
Profit Before Tax   107.08 134.27 
Tax Expense: 4.4   
     Current Tax  36.00 32.00 
     Deferred Tax  7.15 14.19 
Profit/(Loss) For The Period From Continuing Operations   63.93 88.08 
Profit/(Loss) From Discontinuing Operations  - - 
Tax Expense Of Discontinuing Operations  - - 
Profit/(Loss) From Discontinuing Operations (After Tax)   - - 
Profit/(Loss) For The Period   63.93 88.08 
Earnings Per Equity Share: 4.5   
     Basic  0.28 0.39 
     Diluted  - - 

    
In terms of our attached report of even date 

For BELA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 101073W 

By Order of the Board,  
For AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED  

  

CA Shital S Parikh 
(Partner) 

Tushar Suvagiya 
(Managing Director) 
(DIN: 06802410) 

Jignasa Suvagiya 
(Wholetime Director) 

(DIN: 09702789) 

Pratik Gandhi 
(CFO) 

Poorvi Gattani 
(Company 
Secretary) M.No. 121609 

UDIN: 25121609BMOBAB3994 
 
Date : 27th May, 2025  
Place : Vadodara 

  



 
AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED 
 

 
Annual Report F.Y. 24-25 

Pa
ge
56

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2025 
 

  In  Lakhs 
Particular 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   
        Net Profit Before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items 107.08 134.27 
        Adjustment For   
                Depreciation 92.09 80.84 
                Foreign Exchange   
                Gain or loss of Sale of Fixed assets   
                Gain or loss of Investment   
                Finance Cost 88.35 124.91 
                Dividend Income   
                Other adjustment of non cash Item   
                Other adjustment to reconcile Profit   

                Total Adjustment to Profit/Loss (A) 180.44 205.75 
        Adjustment For working Capital Change   
                Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Inventories -7.17 -24.05 
                Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Trade Receivables -396.64 -279.07 
                Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Other Current Assets -35.23 -614.55 
                Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Trade Payable 13.56 -79.94 
                Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in other current Liabilities 439.92 -2.81 
                Adjustment for Provisions -3.99 -172.25 
                Total Adjustment For Working Capital (B) 10.44 -1172.66 
        Total Adjustment to reconcile profit (A+B) 190.87 -966.91 
        Net Cash flow from (Used in) operation  297.95 -832.65 
        Dividend Received   
        Interest received   
        Interest Paid   
        Income Tax Paid/ Refund 36.00 32.00 
        Net Cash flow from (Used in ) operation before Extra Ordinary Items 333.95 -800.65 
        Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items    
        Payment for Extra Ordinary Item   
        Net Cash flow From operating Activities 333.95 -800.65 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities   
        Proceeds From fixed Assets   
        Proceeds from Investment or Equity Instruments   
        Purchase of Fixed Assets 74.22 781.64 
        Purchase Of Investments or Equity Instruments   
        Interest received 0.00 0.00 
        Dividend Received   
        Cash Receipt from Sale of Interest in Joint Venture   
        Cash Payment to acquire Interest in  Joint Venture   
        Cash flow from loosing Control of subsidiaries   
        Cash Payment for acquiring Control of subsidiaries   
        Proceeds from Govt. Grant 5.00 0.00 
        Other Inflow/Outflow Of Cash 0.00 0.00 
       Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Investing Activities before Extra-Ordinary Items -69.22 -781.64 
        Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items   
        Payment for Extra-Ordinary Item   
        Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Investing Activities -69.22 -781.64 
Cash Flows from Financial Activities   
        Proceeds From Issuing Shares 0.00 3432.37 
        Proceeds from Issuing Debenture /Bonds/Notes   
        Redemption of Preference Share   
        Redemption of Debenture   
        Proceeds from other Equity Instruments   
        Proceeds From Borrowing 32.08 0.00 
        Repayment Of Borrowing 73.16 675.95 
        Dividend Paid   
        Interest Paid 88.35 124.91 
        Income Tax Paid/Refund   
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        Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Financial Activities before Extra Ordinary Items -129.43 2631.52 
        Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items    
        Payment for Extra Ordinary Item   
        Net Cash flow from (Used in ) in Financial Activities  -129.43 2631.52 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents before effect of exchange 
rate changes 

135.31 1049.23 

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 135.31 1049.23 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1080.92 31.69 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 1216.23 1080.92 

 
In terms of our attached report of even date 

For BELA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 101073W 

By Order of the Board,  
For AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED  

  

CA Shital S Parikh 
(Partner) 

Tushar Suvagiya 
(Managing Director) 
(DIN: 06802410) 

Jignasa Suvagiya 
(Wholetime Director) 

(DIN: 09702789) 

Pratik Gandhi 
(CFO) 

Poorvi Gattani 
(Company 
Secretary) M.No. 121609 

UDIN: 25121609BMOBAB3994 
 
Date : 27th May, 2025  
Place : Vadodara 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies for the F.y 24-25 
 
Basis of preparation: 
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in India (Indian GAAP).These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects 
with the Accounting Standards notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention on an accrual basis and going concern basis. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied by the company are consistent with those used in the previous year. 
 
Use of Estimates: 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the 
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and 
actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. 
 
2.  Tangible Fixed Assets: 
 

 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost 
comprises the purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

 
 Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of tangible assets which takes substantial period of time to get 

ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are 
ready to be put to use. Assets under installation or under construction as at the Balance Sheet date are 
shown as Capital Work in Progress. 

 
3. Intangible Fixed Assets: 
 
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
 
4. Impairment of Assets: 

 
 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of 

impairment based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net 
selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and risks specific to the asset. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset 
in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 
 

 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 
useful life. 

 
5. Depreciation and Amortisation: 

 
Depreciation on the fixed assets is provided under straight-line method as per the rates prescribed in Part “C” of 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 or at rates permissible under applicable local laws so as to charge off the 
cost of assets to the Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful life, except on the following 
categories of assets: 
 
 (i) Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease. 

 (ii) Intangible assets are amortised over their useful life of 5 years. 
 
6. Investments: 
 
 Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date 

on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are 
classified as long-term investments. 
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 On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises the purchase price and 
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or 
partly acquired by the issue of shares or the other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of securities 
issued. If an investment is acquired in exchange for another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference 
to the fair value of the asset given up or by reference to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever 
is more clearly evident. 

 
 Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment 

basis. Long- term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to 
recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the long term investments. 
 

 On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is 
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

 
7. Employee Benefits: 
  
(a) Short term benefit: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service 

are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include compensated absences such as 
privilege leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized during the period.  

 
(b)  Post-employment benefits:  

         Defined contribution plan  

      The Company’s provident fund scheme is defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution 
paid/payable under the schemes is recognised as expense in the statement of Profit and Loss during the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. The other long-term benefits payable at the time 
of retirement is not recognised in the books of account. The Company will recognised at the time of 
payment. 

 
8. Inventories: 
 
Stock in trade, stores and spares are valued at the cost price.  
 
9. Borrowing Costs: 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest, exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an 
adjustment to the interest cost and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
 
10. Revenue Recognition:  
  
Revenue from Operations 
 
 Sale and operating income includes sale of products, services, profit from partnership firms, income from job 

work services, export incentives, etc.  
 Sale of goods are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and rewards 

of ownership to the buyer. Sales include excise duty but exclude sales tax and value added tax. 
 Sale of services are recognised when services are rendered and related costs are incurred.  
 
Other income 
 
 Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 

rate applicable. 
 Rent income is booked as per terms of contracts. 
 
11. Taxation: 
 
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from 
operations in India and in foreign jurisdictions. Income tax payable in India is determined in accordance with the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and tax expense relating to overseas operations is determined in 
accordance with tax laws applicable in countries where such operations are domiciled. 
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 Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized on timing differences being the difference between taxable 
income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods. 

 
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 

or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax assets 
and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes 
on income levied by the same governing taxation laws 
 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed 
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be  realized against future taxable profits. In 
the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income realized against future 
taxable profits. In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income tax 
Act, 1961 enacted in India, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences 
which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company's gross total income is subject 
to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse 
after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate. 

 
 At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses recognized and unrecognized deferred tax assets. 

The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer 
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which the deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the 
extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available. The Company recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent 
that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

 
 Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is 

convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year 
in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit 
Entitlement. The Company reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement at each balance sheet date and writes 
down the carrying amount of the MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing 
evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

 
12. Earnings per share: 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 
13. Provisions: 
 
A provision is recognized when there exists a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to present value and are 
determined based on best estimates required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 
 
14. Contingent liabilities: 
 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company 
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability 
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, the Company does not recognize a contingent 
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
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15. Cash and cash equivalent: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-
term deposits with banks with an original maturity of three months or less. 
 
16. Statement showing Yearly Ratios 

Particulars Numerator Denominator 2023-2024 2024-2025 Variance 
Current Ratio Current Assets Current 

Liabilities 
6.43 4.24 -34.06% 

      
Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's 

Funds 
0.11 0.20 81.82% 

      
Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio 

Earnings 
available for 
debt service 

Debt Service 0.70 0.32 -54.29% 

      
Return on Equity Ratio Net Earnings Shareholder 

Equity 
0.02 0.01 -50.00% 

      
Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Sales Average Stock 

Carried or 
Inventory 

4.73 3.66 -22.62% 

      
Trade Receivables Turnover 
Ratio 

Credit Sales Average 
Accounts 
Receivable 

0.82 0.86 4.88% 

      
Trade payables Turnover 
Ratio 

Credit 
Purchases 

Average 
Accounts 
Payable 

1.57 1.84 17.20% 

      
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Sales or Cost of 

Sales 
Net Working 
Capital 

0.47 0.56 19.15% 

      
Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Operating 

Profit 
Sales 5.60% 3.38% -2.22% 

      
Return on Capital Employed Earning Before 

Interest and 
Tax 

Capital 
Employed 

0.05 0.04 -20.00% 

      
Return on Investment (%) Net Profit after 

interest, taxes 
and preference 
dividends 

Equity capital 
plus reserves 

1.78% 1.31% -0.47% 

      
 
Reason for Variance more than 25% 

1. Current ratio has been decreased during the year mainly short term borrowing from the bank has been 
increased. 
 

2. Debt – Equity ratio has been increased during the year mainly company is relying more on bank finance 
its operations rather than using its own resource. 
 

3. Debt service coverage ration has been reduced due to increase in short term debt during the year. 
 

4. Return on equity ratio has been reduce due to increase short term debt of the company during the year.  
 

17.    Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: 
 
(A)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries") with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary 
shall – 



 
AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED 
 

 
Annual Report F.Y. 24-25 

Pa
ge
62

 

 
(i)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries"); or  
 
(ii)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

 
(B)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

("Funding Party") with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company 
shall –  

 
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or 
 
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

 
18. Undisclosed Income: 

 
The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search 
or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961). Further, there was no previously 
unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of account during the 
year. 
 
19. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: 

The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025. Further, the Company has also not received any deposits or advances from any person 
for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency. 
 
20. A company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
 
21. A company does not hold any benami property. 

22. Utilisation of Borrowed funds : 
 

  

(A)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the 
Intermediary shall - 

 
(i)    directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”); or 
 
(ii)    provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

    
(B)   The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Funding Party”) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company 
shall – 

 
(i)    directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or 
 

 

       (ii)    provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate  Beneficiaries. 
 

 

23. Remuneration to the Auditor :-                       In  Lakhs 

Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

Statutory audit fees 2.00 2.00 

Income Tax Audit   1.00 1.00 

Total Rs.  3.00 3.00 
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24. Related Party Disclosure 
 

A. Related party Disclosures as required by AS-18,” Related Party Disclosures” are given below:  
 

Key managerial Personnel  
Sr. No. Name  Designation 

1 Mr. Tushar K Suvagiya Managing Director 
2 Mrs. Jignasa T Suvagiya Whole-time Director 
3 Mr.  Ravi A Apte Non-Executive Director 

 

    
                       

B. Relatives of key managerial personnel and Enterprises over which key managerial  
personnel and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence are as follows:     

Name  Relation  
Mrs. Swati R Apte Relative of director 
Dhyey Healthcare Private Limited  Common Directorship 
Short Stay Hospital Private Limited Common Directorship 

Justright Home Appliances Private Limited Common Directorship 

Laksham Automobiles Private Limited Common Directorship 

Shayona Medical and Provision Store Director Proprietary Concern 

Karshan Suvagiya Relative of Managing Director 

Jaya Suvagiya Relative of Managing Director 

Dhyey Suvagiya Relative of Managing Director 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
C. Nature of Transactions with Related Party In  Lakhs 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025 

As at  
March 31, 2024 

Loan from Director     
Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya     368.50  19.00  
Loan from Others     
       -                - 
Repayment of Loan from Director     
Tushar Suvagiya 318.60            47.00  
   
Intercorporate Loans Given     
Laksham Automobiles Private Limited 0.00 300.00 
Short Stay Hospital Private Limited 0.00 39.09 
   
Repayment of Intercorporate Loans Given     
Laksham Automobiles Private Limited 0.00 300.00 
                              
Income   
Dr. Tushar Suvagiya 81.73 0.00 
   
Expenses     
APRL Pathlabs Private Limited              36.64             29.73  
Dr. Ravi Apte    33.02                      19.21  
Dr. Swati Apte 9.42 16.10 
Tushar Suvagiya  61.20 4.80 
Jignasa Suvagiya 24.00 8.00 
Karshan Suvagiya 7.20 4.80 
Jayaben Suvagiya 16.80 11.20 
Dhyey Suvagiya 16.80 11.20 
   
Purchases – Materials / fixed assets     
Shayona Medical and Provision Stores                    -                2.21  
Short Stay Hospitals Private Limited - 104.09 
Justright Home Appliances Private Limited 0.95 - 
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Smital Petroleum 6.77 - 
   
Purchases of Proprietary Business     
Jambusar General Hospital and Maternity Home                  -             500.00 
Shayona Medical and Provision Stores     - 120.00 
 
Details of related party balances receivable / (payable) outstanding during the year: 

In Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025 

As at  
March 31, 2024 

Dr. Tushar K Suvagiya           (49.89)                 - 
Dr. Ravi A Apte           (30.42)          (30.42) 
Dr. Ripal S Padmani            (7.50)                       (7.50)  
Dr. Subhash L Padmani (0.26) (0.26) 
Jayshree Kolambekar (10.98) (10.98) 
Shayona Medical and Provision Stores                   -           (2.93) 
APRL Pathlabs Private Limited            (12.33)    (8.70) 
Dhyey Healthcare Private Limited 2.15     2.15  
Tushar Suvagiya – Rent deposit 18.00 18.00 
Jignasa Suvagiya – Rent deposit 30.00 30.00 
Dhyey Suvagiya – Rent deposit 42.00 42.00 
Jaya Suvagiya – Rent deposit 42.00 42.00 
Karshan Suvagiya – Rent deposit 18.00 18.00 
Narsingh Lalkiya – Rent Deposit 50.00 0.00 
Smital Petroleum (1.90) 0.00 

   
 

25. Other Notes : 

i)     The management has confirmed that adequate provisions have been made for all the known 
and determined liabilities and the same is not in excess of the amounts reasonably required 
to be provided for. 
   

ii)    The balances of trade payables, trade receivables, loans and advances are unsecured and 
considered as good are subject to confirmations of respective parties concerned. 

 
iii)     The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 
  

26. The figures of previous year have been re-arranged and regrouped wherever necessary 
to make them comparable with those of the current year. 

     
  

For BELA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 101073W 

By Order of the Board,  
For AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED  

  

 
CA Shital S Parikh 
(Partner) 

Tushar Suvagiya 
(Managing Director) 
(DIN: 06802410) 

Jignasa Suvagiya 
(Wholetime 
Director) 

(DIN: 09702789) 

Pratik Gandhi 
(CFO) 

Poorvi Gattani 
(Company 
Secretary) 

M.No. 121609 
UDIN: 25121609BMOBAB3994 
 
Date : 27th May, 2025  
Place : Vadodara 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 2.1 Share Capital   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Authorised   

24000000 (24000000) Equity Shares  of  5/- Par Value 1200.00 1200.00 
 1200.00 1200.00 

Issued   
22600000 (22600000) Equity Shares  of  5/- Par Value 1130.00 1130.00 
 1130.00 1130.00 

Subscribed   
22600000 (22600000) Equity Shares  of  5/- Par Value 1130.00 1130.00 
 1130.00 1130.00 

Paidup   
22600000 (22600000) Equity Shares  of  5/- Par Value Fully 
Paidup 

1130.00 1130.00 

 1130.00 1130.00 
 
 

  

2.1.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 
and at the end of the reporting period 
 

In  Lakhs 

Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 

 Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount 

Number of shares at the beginning 2,26,00,000 1130.00 2,26,00,000 1130.00 
Add : Issued during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00 
Less : Bought Back during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00 
Others     
     Bonus issue during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00 
 0 0.00 0 0.00 
Number of shares at the end of the year 2,26,00,000 1130.00 2,26,00,000 1130.00 

 
2.1.2 List of shareholders:     

Name of Shareholder  As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 
No. of Shares held % of Holding  No. of Shares held % of Holding  

(A) Holding More than 5 %    
Mr. Tushar K Suvagiya– promoter 1,04,46,000 46.22% 1,04,40,000 46.19% 

Total (A) 1,04,46,000 46.22% 1,04,40,000 46.19% 

(B) Promoters      
Mr. Subhash L Padmani  4,50,000 1.99% 4,50,000 1.99% 
Mr. Ravi A Apte 3,60,000 1.59% 3,60,000 1.59% 

Total (B) 8,10,000 3.58% 8,10,000 3.58% 

(C) Promoter Group     
Mrs. Jignasa Suvagiya 9,00,000 3.99% 9,00,000 3.99% 
Mrs. Ripal Padmani 4,50,000 1.99% 4,50,000 1.99% 
Mrs. Jayaben Suvagiya 9,00,000 3.99% 9,00,000 3.99% 
Mr. Karshanbhai Suvagiya 9,00,000 3.99% 9,00,000 3.99% 

Total (C) 31,50,000 13.96% 31,50,000 13.96% 

(D) Others     
Mr. Jitesh N. Suvagiya 9,00,000 3.98% 9,00,000 3.98% 
Mrs. Jayshree Kolambekar 9,00,000 3.98% 9,00,000 3.98% 
Public Shareholders 63,94,000 28.29% 64,00,000 28.31% 

Total (D) 81,94,000 36.25% 82,00,000 36.27% 

Total (A+B+C+D) 2,26,00,000 100.00% 2,26,00,000 100.00% 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 2.2 Reserve and Surplus   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Securities Premium Opening 3122.37 0.00 
Additions 0.00 3122.37 
Adjusted Bonus Shares (0.00) (0.00) 
Adjusted Writing off Discount Expenses on Issue of Shares / 
Debentures 

(0.00) (0.00) 

 3122.37 3122.37 
   
Profit and Loss Opening 695.85 607.77 
Amount Transferred From Statement of P&L 63.93 88.08 
 759.78 695.85 
 3882.15 3818.22 

 
Note No. 2.3 Long Term Borrowings   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Term Loan   
     Banks   
          Secured   
               Rupee   
                    ICICI bank term loan 51.02 63.51 
   
Others   
     Unsecured   
          Dr. Ravi Apte 30.42 30.42 
          Dr. Subhash Padmani 0.26 0.26 
          Dr. Tushar Suvagiya 49.90 0.00 
          Kuntesh Patel 6.00 11.33 
          Dr. Ripal Padamani 7.50 7.50 
          Jayshree Kolambekar 10.98 10.98 
 156.08 124.00 

 
 
Note No. 2.4 Deferred Taxes   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Deferred Tax Liabilities   
     Depreciation 88.51 81.36 

 88.51 81.36 

 
 
Note No. 2.5 Short Term Borrowings 

  

  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Loans repayable on demand   
     Banks   
          Secured   
               Axis Bank- 924030005186152 476.35 130.57 
               Axis Bank- 924030005186165 353.54 166.76 
               Kotak Mahindra Bank- 8947829395 0.00 106.10 
   
Current maturities of long-term borrowings   
     ICICI bank term loan 20.34 20.44 

 850.22 423.87 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 2.6 Trade Payables  
  
as at 31/03/2025 In  Lakhs 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total 
 Less than 1 

year 
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years 
Not due  

(i) MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(ii) Others 141.70 3.81 0.06 0.00 0.00 145.57 
(iii) Disputed 
dues - MSME 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iv) Disputed 
dues - Others 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

as at 31/03/2024 In  Lakhs 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total 

 Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

Not due  

(i) MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
(ii) Others 124.30 7.20 0.51 0.00 0.00 132.01 
(iii) Disputed 
dues - MSME 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iv) Disputed 
dues - Others 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 
Note No. 2.7 Other Current Liabilities   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Unpaid dividends 0.95 0.00 
Other payables   
     Employee Related 1.59 1.17 
     Other Accrued Expenses 11.18 0.00 
     Other Current Liabilities 6.02 5.00 
 19.74 6.17 

 
Note No. 2.8 Short Term Provisions   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Dividend   
     Dividend on Equity Shares 0.00 11.30 
Tax Provision   
     Current Tax 36.00 32.00 
Statuary Liabilities 16.78 9.47 
 52.78 52.77 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 2.9 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 In  Lakhs 
Particulars Gross Depreciation Impairment Net 

 Openin
g as at 
01/04/

2024 

Additi
on 

Deduc
tion 

Reva 
luation 

Closing 
as at 

31/03/
2025 

Openin
g as at 
01/04/

2024 

During 
Period 

Deduc
tion 

Other 
Adj. 

Closing 
as at 

31/03
/ 2025 

Opening as 
at 01/04/ 

2024 

During 
Period 

Rever 
sal 

Closing 
as at 

31/03/ 
2025 

Closing 
as at 

31/03/
2025 

Closing 
as at 

31/03/
2024 

Land                 
  Free Hold Land 132.38    132.38          132.38 132.38 

Building                 

   Other Building 438.32 4.16   442.49 39.92 6.95   46.88     395.61 398.40 

Plant and 
Machinery 

735.45 54.72   790.16 192.85 55.43   248.27     541.89 542.60 

Equipments                 

     Computer 
Equipments 

15.63 3.33   18.96 8.57 3.67   12.24     6.72 7.06 

     Other 
Equipments 

116.25 1.79   118.04 46.24 11.11   57.36     60.68 70.00 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

96.42 3.94   100.36 19.79 9.33   29.11     71.25 76.63 

Vehicles                 

   Motor Vehicles 29.49    29.49 4.85 3.50   8.35     21.14 24.64 

Grand Total 1563.94 67.94 0.00 0.00 1631.87 312.22 89.99 0.00 0.00 402.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1229.67 1251.72 

Previous 1346.97 216.97 0.00 0.00 1563.94 233.67 78.55 0.00 0.00 312.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1251.72 1113.30 

 
Note No. 3.0 Intangible assets 

 In  Lakhs 
Particulars Gross Amortisation Impairment Net 

 Opening 
as at 

01/04/
2024 

Addition Deducti
on 

Closing as 
at 31/03/ 

2025 

Opening 
as at 

01/04/
2024 

During 
Period 

Deduc
tion 

Other 
Adj. 

Closing 
as at 

31/03/ 
2025 

Opening 
as at 

01/04/ 
2024 

During 
Period 

Reversa
l 

Closing 
as at 

31/03/ 
2025 

Closing 
as at 

31/03/ 
2025 

Closing 
as at 

31/03
/2024 

Goodwill 563.41   563.41          563.41 563.41 

Computer 
Software 

12.18 6.28  18.46 9.43 2.10   11.53     6.94 2.75 

Grand Total 575.60 6.28 0.00 581.88 9.43 2.10 0.00 0.00 11.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 570.35 566.16 
Previous 10.92 564.67 0.00 575.60 7.14 2.29 0.00 0.00 9.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 566.16 3.78 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 3.1 Capital work-in-progress 

 

  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Tangible Assets Work in Progress 0.16 0.00 

 0.16 0.00 

 
Note No. 3.2 Inventories   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Finished Goods 71.27 64.10 

 71.27 64.10 

 
Note No. 3.3 Trade receivables   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Trade Receivable   
     Unsecured Considered Good 2458.33 2061.68 
 2458.33 2061.68 

 
Ageing Schedule as at 31/03/2025 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total 

 Less than 6 
months 

6 months 
- 1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 

Not due  

(i) Undisputed 
Trade receivables - 
considered good 

412.39 791.61 1207.42 232.27 0.00 0.00 2411.43 

(ii) Undisputed 
Trade Receivables 
- considered 
doubtful 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iii) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered good 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered 
doubtful 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.90 0.00 46.90 

 
Ageing Schedule as at 31/03/2024 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total 
 Less than 6 

months 
6 months 
- 1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 

Not due  

(i) Undisputed 
Trade receivables - 
considered good 

136.87 437.20 1418.87 21.84 0.00 0.00 2014.78 

(ii) Undisputed 
Trade Receivables 
- considered 
doubtful 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iii) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered good 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered 
doubtful 

0.00 0.00 0.00 46.91 0.00 0.00 46.91 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
Note No. 3.4 Cash and cash equivalents   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Cash in Hand 34.48 34.53 
Cheques, Drafts in Hand 0.14 0.25 
Balances With Banks   
          Balance With Scheduled Banks   
               Current Account   
                    KMBL-9395 71.71 0.00 
                    Axis Bank- 769 0.04 0.32 
                    Axis Bank- 4524 0.50 2.88 
                    Axis Bank- 4352 0.87 0.87 
                    Axis Bank-  8052 0.00 33.00 
                    Axis Bank- 0973 0.25 0.37 
                    KMBL- 4857 5.03 5.00 
                    Axis-Jgh-1199 0.26 0.00 
                    KMBL- Div2324-6010 0.95 0.00 
               Deposit Account   
                    FD- KMBL - 8947829456 133.52 123.95 
                    FD-TH- 50300859727910 1.43 1.00 
                    TD- AXIS BANK -923040104615207 2.75 2.55 
                    TD- KMBL- 8948802205 0.00 25.00 
                    FD- KMBL-6275419555 8.36 0.00 
                    FD-KMBL-6276928524 309.32 0.00 
                    FD-KMBL-6277049662 249.56 0.00 
                    FD-KMBL-6281338168 386.52 0.00 
                    TD-AXIS-924040077412602 10.52 0.00 
                    FD- KMBL-6258441974 0.00 7.70 
                    FD-KMBL- 6259464165 0.00 253.00 
                    FD-KMBL - 6259553073 0.00 230.00 
                    FD- KMBL- 6262424909 0.00 360.50 
 1216.23 1080.92 

 
Note No. 3.5 Short-term loans and advances   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Security Deposits   
     Unsecured, considered good   
          Ayushman Deposit 0.28 0.28 
          District Health Society 0.11 0.11 
          Covid Centre 8.54 8.54 
          Urmi Oxygen Co 3.20 3.20 
          Aims Ind. Pvt. Ltd. 1.50 1.50 
          MSI Low And Medium Voltage 0.41 0.41 
          Dwarkesh Hospital- Deposit 3.00 3.00 
          Lifeline Medical Gas Deposit 0.00 3.00 
          Deposit - Ima Vadodara 0.08 0.08 
          Deposit -CDSL 0.45 0.45 
          Deposit - NSDL 0.45 0.45 
          Rent - Deposit- JGHMH 150.00 150.00 
          Nse - Security Deposit 0.00 38.40 
          Deposit -IFV Centre- Tirth 45.00 0.00 
          Deposit - RH- Narsinhbhai Lalkiya 50.00 0.00 
          Deposit -Shreeji Hospital Padra 0.00 2.00 
     Secured, Considered Good   
          BG Deposit - Axis Bank-50550 11.11 10.43 
          BG- Deposit- Axis Bank- 80604 11.49 10.84 
Loans and advances to related parties   
     Unsecured, considered good   
          Dhyey Healthcare Private Limited. 2.15 2.15 
Loans and advances to others   
     Unsecured, considered good   
          Advance To Employees 205.77 3.44 
          Avkar Buildtech LLP 0.00 200.00 
          Capacious Wealth Management LLP 11.33 50.00 
          Examen  Infra & Ent. Limited. 200.00 200.00 
 704.87 688.28 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 3.6 Other current assets   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars as at 31/03/2025 as at 31/03/2024 
Excess TDS Paid 0.01 0.01 
Prepaid Expenses 6.25 8.15 
TDS Receivable 67.87 33.20 
TCS Receivable 0.00 0.01 
TDS Appeal A.Y. 18-19 0.05 0.05 
Accrued Interest From Bank 0.00 14.12 
 74.18 55.55 

 
Note No. 3.7 Revenue From Operations   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Sale of Products   

Traded Goods   
Sales Of Medicine 407.17 328.80 

Sale of Services   
Income - Consulting - OPD 217.55 116.76 
Income - IPD Bill 1177.05 1073.71 
Professional Fees 113.28 12.32 
Income - Laboratory 27.19 30.20 
Income - Radiology 11.11 12.01 
 1953.34 1573.81 

 
Note No. 3.8 Other income   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Interest   

Interest Income 46.89 21.02 
Interest On FD 75.03 54.76 

Miscellaneous   
Rent income 4.75 8.90 
Government Grant 5.00 0.00 

Adjustments 0.00 0.00 
 131.67 84.68 

 
Note No. 3.9 Cost of materials consumed   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Other  Material   

Opening 64.10 40.05 
Purchase 254.98 270.47 
Closing 71.27 64.10 
 247.81 246.42 

 
   

Details of Other  Material   

Particulars For the Year Ended 
31/03/2025 

For the Year Ended 
31/03/2024 

Purchase 247.81 246.42 

 247.81 246.42 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 4.0 Employee Benefits Expense 

  

  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Salary, Wages & Bonus   

Salary  501.97 340.48 
Incentive 5.09 3.50 
Bonus 14.23 7.21 

Contribution to Provident Fund 4.40 2.73 

Staff Welfare Expenses   
Staff Welfare Expenses 6.39 2.93 
 532.08 356.85 

 
Note No. 4.1 Finance costs   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Interest Expenses   
     Interest Expenses   

Interest - On Term Loan 6.09 8.02 
Interest - On Overdraft 76.83 91.71 

     Bank Charges   
Bank Charges 4.39 2.01 
Credit Card Charges (Plastic Money) 1.03 0.18 
Loan Processing Charges 0.00 6.26 

     Other Interest Charges 0.00 16.74 
 88.35 124.91 

 
Note No. 4.2 Depreciation and amortisation expense   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Depreciation & Amortisation   
     Depreciation Tangible Assets 89.99 78.55 
     Amortisation Intangible Assets 2.10 2.29 
 92.09 80.84 

 
Note No. 4.3 Other expenses   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Manufacturing Service Costs Expenses   
     Power and Fuel   

Electricity Exp ( M.G.V.CO. LTD ) 44.06 30.18 

     Other Manufacturing Costs   
Laboratory Expenses 54.58 31.17 
Hospital Exp / Misc Expenses 23.36 7.98 
Discount / Kasar / Vatav 36.23 89.69 

Administrative and General Expenses   
     Telephone Postage   

Telephone Expenses 0.72 0.19 
Postage Expenses 0.72 0.76 

     Printing Stationery   
Printing And Stationary 16.98 10.87 

     Rent Rates And Taxes   
Rent 125.41 54.41 
Rates And Taxes 4.52 6.17 
Rent- Medical Equipment 0.07 0.00 
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     Auditors Remuneration   
Audit Fees 3.54 4.08 

     Directors Sitting Fees 0.16 0.00 

     Repairs Maintenance Expenses   
Plant Machinery 15.22 11.04 
Buildings 3.74 1.50 
Electrical Repairs 3.63 0.00 
Fire Expenses 1.24 0.00 

     Travelling Conveyance   
Travelling Expenses 1.54 2.34 
MAA/Aayushman Charges 1.05 0.54 

     Legal and Professional Charges   
Dr Professional Charges 539.87 358.39 
Professional Fees 9.05 10.18 
Professional Tax 0.05 0.02 
NSE Charges 1.07 0.39 
CDSL Fees 0.53 0.27 
NSDL Fees 0.53 0.27 
Happiness Program Charges 6.00 5.00 
NSDL Fees - AGM 0.00 0.16 
NABH- Inspection Fees 0.00 0.25 

     Insurance Expenses   
Insurance Expenses 2.52 0.84 

     Vehicle Running Expenses   
Vehicle Exp (Petrol & Diesel & Gas) 12.98 3.23 

     Donations Subscriptions   
Donations 41.25 1.16 
CSR – Donations 0.00 20.33 

     Safety and Security Expenses   
Security Services 10.47 14.21 

     Entertainment Expenses 0.09 0.00 

     Catering Canteen Expenses   
Food  Services Expenses 8.39 7.81 
Tea Coffee & Refreshments 1.34 0.65 

     Information Technology Expenses   
Computer Expenses 2.31 1.12 

     Seminars Conference Expenses   
Camp Expenses 0.22 0.00 

     Registration and Filing Fees   
ROC Expenses  0.80 1.45 
License Fees 3.74 0.00 

     Other Administrative and General Expenses   
Bio Medical Waste Expenses 4.40 1.90 
House Keeping Expenses 10.94 5.30 
Laundry Expenses 2.16 1.99 
Linen Expenses 4.53 4.74 
Ethics Committee Expenses 1.25 0.50 

Selling Distribution Expenses   
     Advertising Promotional Expenses   

Advertisement / Marketing Expenses 16.33 12.82 

Provisions   
     Other Provisions Created 0.00 11.30 
 1017.61 715.20 
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 
Note No. 4.4 Tax Expenses   
  In  Lakhs 
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Current tax 36.00 32.00 

Deferred tax   
Deferred Tax 7.15 14.19 
 43.15 46.19 

 
Note No. 4.5 Earnings per equity share   
  In  
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31/03/2025 
For the Year Ended 

31/03/2024 
Earnings Per Equity Share   
     Basic   

Basic EPS Before Extra-Ordinary Item 0.28 0.39 
Extra-Ordinary Item Adjustment 0.00 0.00 

Number of Shares used in computing EPS   

     Basic 22600000 22600000 

     Diluted 22600000 22600000 

   
In terms of our attached report of even date 

For BELA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 101073W 

By Order of the Board, 
For AATMAJ HEALTHCARE LIMITED  

  

CA Shital S Parikh 
(Partner) 

Tushar Suvagiya 
(Managing Director) 
(DIN: 06802410) 

Jignasa 
Suvagiya 
(Wholetime 
Director) 

(DIN: 09702789) 

Pratik 
Gandhi 
(CFO) 

Poorvi Gattani 
(Company 
Secretary) M.No. 121609 

UDIN: 25121609BMOBAB3994 
 
Date : 27th May, 2025   
Place : Vadodara 
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Email: info@jupiterhospitalvadodara.com 
Website: https://jtphospitals.com/ 
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